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Statement From The Managing Director 

 

Dear Shareholders, 

 

I am pleased to place before you the 27th Annual Report of Midas 

Infra Trade Limited with reflections on the year gone by and my 

thoughts on the journey ahead. The Company has entered in to 

Jewellery Trade by acquiring the business of HDC Private Limited in 

the Financial Year 2016-17 and opening chain of Showrooms of 

Jewellery under the franchisee of “SUNAR” in Delhi and NCR.  The 

Business of the Company was outstanding and it recorded revenue of 

Rs. 15858.21 Lakh in this year.                                                                                   

 

It is an old saying that change is the only constant. Last few years have seen many regulatory 

changes like: • Introduction and reversal of abolition of gold on lease scheme • Announcement of demonetization. • Introduction Goods and Services Tax • Jewellery purchase schemes falling under the ambit of Deposits  • Introduction and reversal of 80:20 ruling on gold imports • Hallmarking • PAN Card requirement for any sales above  Rs. 2 lakh                                             • Imposition of excise duty for the first time on the jewelry industry 

The Company has remained on its toes throughout to comply with the new regulations and 

changing business environment. At the same time we welcome the new regulations as they 

will go a long way in making the jewellery industry more transparent and increase the market 

share of the organized players. Increasing regulatory environment increases the compliance 

costs for the unorganized players and thus creates a huge growth potential for the organized 

players. 

The Indian consumption story continued to gather momentum during the year. Buoyed by 

7.2% growth in GDP, India’s affluent middle class and aspirational youth are the key drivers 
of the impressive and increasing Indian consumption trajectory. Long-term reforms like the 

implementation of the Goods and Services Tax (GST) are in line with formalisation of the 

economy as they create a unified marketplace for the first time 

The share of the organized players had been increasing in any case as the consumers prefer to 

buy jewelry from a branded showroom due to assurance of quality, purity and availability of 

a wider design range. The imposition of Goods and Service Tax regime from 1st July, 2017 

further shifts the balance in favour of the organized sector and we feel that the pace of this 

shift will only increase now. 

Thus, I see huge potential for growth, not only for Midas but for other branded players as 

well. The Indian jewelry market is huge and I feel that there is enough scope for another 10 to 

15 branded Companies. However, it is very important to have a first mover advantage to 

acquire the maximum market share and Midas’s expansion policy is to achieve the same. 
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Though online channels are gaining transaction in our country, especially in the younger 

generation, but for jewelry purchase touch and feel of the actual product still remains a very 

important factor. I am now getting a lot of customers who have browsed our products online, 

liked them but come to our showrooms for purchasing the same. Hence, having a physical 

presence on ground is a must for growth and customer acquisition. The Company would 

therefore continue to open showrooms for gaining access to the maximum number of 

consumers. 

Some of the other ROE accretion steps being carried out by the Company include: 

(1) Reduction in the quantum of inventory by digitising the same and making it available 

across all showrooms rather than physical inventory. This would be especially useful for 

reducing the number of high value jewelry items which have a longer turnaround period. 

(2) Leveraging technology to create virtual showrooms and thus minimize investment in 

physical showrooms. 

(3) Strengthening our online vertical enables us to target consumers across wide area and 

achieve sales with a minimal capital investment. This also helps us to leverage on the 

online offline synergies between the two verticals. 

(4) Leverage in house designing and manufacturing strengths to create higher margin 

jewelry of the likes of Flexia etc. 

(5) Helping margins by identifying inefficiencies and rationalizing costs across all the 

operations and processes. 

I would continue to invest on strengthening my manufacturing and designing capabilities. I 

sincerely believe that this sector becomes more and more organized the only differentiating 

factor between the two organized/branded players will be the availability of maximum 

number of designs at all price points. Hence, I am very passionate about this point. Having 

strong manufacturing capabilities permits me to reduce production costs, retain skilled 

workers, shorten product development and develop capability to introduce newer collections 

rapidly. 

This will enable the Company to gain a sustainable competitive advantage over its 

competitors. 

Acquisition of exclusive franchisee of premium Jewelry brand “SUNAR” by the Company 

has given us a presence in the high premium Jewelry segment within the country. The 

Company is confident that it will play a significant role in its growth in the coming years. 

I take this opportunity to convey my thanks to all the stakeholders, vendors, bankers and 

customers for all their support and encouragement throughout the year. I am also thankful to 

all our employees who have continued to contribute to the Company's growth with their 

exemplary performance and commitment. 

Yours sincerely, 

 

Rajnish Chopra 

Managing Director 
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OUR VISION 

We create elevating experiences for the people we touch and significantly Impact the world 

we work in. 

 

OUR MISSION 

We will do this through a pioneering spirit and a caring, value-driven culture that fosters 

innovation drives performance and ensures the highest global Standards in everything we do. 

 

 

OUR VALUES AND STANDARDS 

 

Total Customer Orientation 

Customers take precedence over everything else, always. 

 

Employee Appreciation 

We value and respect our employee and endeavor to fulfill their needs and aspirations. 

 

Performance Culture and Teamwork 

At Midas, high performance is a way of life and is nurtured by teamwork. 

 

Creativity and Innovation 

Driven by innovation and creativity, we thrive on questioning the status quo and investing in 

current technologies. 

 

Passion for Excellence 

In all our pursuits, we ceaselessly strive for excellence. 

 

Corporate Citizenship 

We ensure that a part of our resources are invested in the betterment of the environment and 

community, in general. 

 

Engaging With Our Stakeholders 

Our value creation process integrates value-creation for all our stake holders. We engage with 

various stake holders on a regular basis to understand their concerns and expectations and 

work towards resolving and fulfilling these. 

 

Customers 

As a Jewelry products company, we are deeply aligned to the ever evolving and changing 

needs of our customers. Creating and delivering a pleasant and delightful retail experience 

encompassing the right store experience with excellent products that are latest in terms of 

trend and fashion, an accessible and responsive customer service network is at the heart of 

our customer engagement initiatives. 

 

We undertake various activities and initiatives to engage with our customers across 

geographies, demographics and segments. We use both traditional engagement channels like 

surveys and research as well as digital media to understand the concerns and needs of 

customers. Creating forums and communities on the digital media ensures we can address 

their concerns and incorporate their feedback on a real-time basis, which also enables us to 

continuously upgrade and improve customer service with better proposition. 
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Vendors, Third Party Contractors and Suppliers 

We work with numerous vendors, suppliers and contractors – each of whom play an 

important role ranging from procurement to manufacture and from branding to logistics. We 

regularly meet with our vendor, to understand their issues relating to ease of doing business, 

maintaining quality, etc. These initiatives are held at our corporate office. 

 

Our Employees, Our People 

We are committed to our employees. We engage with our employees through various forums 
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INCOME AND PAT GRAPH 
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MIDAS INFRA TRADE LIMITED 

 

Corporate Information As on 31st March, 2021 
 

 

 

Board of Directors: 

 

 

Mr. Rajnish Chopra     Managing Director 

Mr. Bhagat Ram      Independent Director 

Mr. Shyam Sundar     Independent Director 

 

 

Chief Financial Officer:     Mr. Murari Lal 

 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer:          Praveen Kumar  (w.e.f. 07.04.2021) 
(Note - Ms. Aastha Wahi had resigned 

from Company Secretary w.e.f. 15Th 

October, 2020     and 15Th October, 2020 

was last date of her employment) 

 

Statutory Auditors APRA & Associates LLP,  

  Chartered Accountants 

  FRN: 011078N 

  379, Aggarwal Millenium Towers-II 

  Netaji Subhash Palace, Pitampura,  

  New Delhi·110034 

 

Internal Auditors M/s Manav & Co, Chartered 

Accountants,                                                                         

Annapurna Apartment, Flat-1A,                     

12A, Suhasini Ganguly Sarani,                          

Kolkata-700025 

 

Secretarial Auditor M/s KMPM & Co, Company 

Secretaries 

  611,6Th Floor, Pragati Tower, Rajinder 

Place, New Delhi -110008 
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Bankers   1. IDFC First Bank, Rohini 

  2. HDFC Bank, Karol Bagh 

   

 

 

Registered Office 301, 2633-2634, Bank Street, Karol 

Bagh 

  New Delhi- 110005 

  Tel.: 011-42633934 

 

Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA) Skyline Financial Services Private 

Limited, 

D-153 A, 1st Floor, Okhla Industrial 

Area, 

Phase – I, New Delhi- 110020 

Tel.: 011-40450193 to 97 

 

Website      www.mitl.org.in 

 

Corporate Identity Number    L65910DL1994PLC062379 

 

ISIN (Equity Share)     INE290M01022 

 

BSE Limited (Scrip Code)    531192 

 

 

 

Note :  Members seeking any information on the Annual Report & Accounts are 

requested to send their queries to the Company on or before 5:00 P.M. (IST) 

on Thursday, 23rd September, 2021. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.associatedfinlease.com/
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MIDAS INFRA TRADE LIMITED 
CIN: L65910DL1994PLC062379 

Regd. Office: 301, 2633-2634, Bank Street, Karol Bagh, New Delhi-110005 

Tel: 011-42633934, Email Id- midasinfratrade@gmail.com 

Website: www.mitl.org.in 

 

 

 

 

N O T I C E 

 

Notice is hereby given that the 27th Annual General Meeting of the members of MIDAS 

INFRA TRADE LIMITED will be held on Thursday, September 30, 2021 at 04:00 P.M. at 

301, 2633-2634, Bank Street, Karol Bagh, New Delhi-110005 to transact the following 

business(s): 

 

ORDINARY BUSINESS 

 

Item No. 1:   To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the 

Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2021 and the Reports of the 

Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon. 

 

 

 

By the order of Board of Directors of  

  Midas Infra Trade Limited 

   

 

 

 

   Rajnish Chopra 

Managing Director 

 DIN: 07676838 

Date:  14.08.2021                                                     

Place: New Delhi  

mailto:midasinfratrade@gmail.com
http://www.mitl.org.in/
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NOTES 

  

1. A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) is 

entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote in the meeting and the proxy need not be 

a member of the Company. A person can act as proxy on behalf of Members not 

exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent (10%) of the 

total share capital of the company carrying voting rights. A member holding more 

than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may 

appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as proxy for any other 

person or shareholder. A Proxy form is enclosed herewith. The form of proxy in order 

to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the 

Company, not less than Forty-Eight (48) hours before the commencement of the 

Meeting. Proxies submitted on behalf of limited companies, societies etc., must be 

supported by appropriate resolutions / authority, as applicable.  

2. The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain 

closed from Wednesday, 22th September 2021 to Wednesday 29th September 2021 

(both days inclusive).  

3. Members holding shares in dematerialized form are requested to intimate all changes 

pertaining to their bank details, National Electronic Clearing Service (NECS), 

Electronic Clearing Service (ECS), mandates, nominations, power of attorney, change 

of address, change of name, e-mail address, contact numbers, etc., to their Depository 

Participant (DP). Changes intimated to the DP will then be automatically reflected in 

the Company’s records which will help the Company and the Company’s Registrars 
and Transfer Agents, to provide efficient and better services. Members holding shares 

in physical form are requested to intimate such changes to Company.  

4. To support the Green Initiative, Members who have not registered their e-mail 

addresses are requested to register the same with Depositories. This will assist the 

Company in redressing shareholders’ grievances expeditiously.  
5. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider converting their 

holding to dematerialized form to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares 

and for ease in portfolio management. Members can contact the Company or 

depository, for assistance in this regard. 

6. Members holding shares in physical form in identical order of names in more than one 

folio are requested to send to the Company, the details of such folios together with the 

share certificates for consolidating their holding in one folio. A consolidated share 

certificate will be returned to such Members after making requisite changes thereon.  

7. In case of joint holders attending the meeting, the Member whose name appears as the 

first holder in the order of names as per the Register of Members of the Company will 

be entitled to vote. 

8. As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 the facility for 

making nominations is available to the shareholders in respect of the equity shares 

held by them. Members who have not yet registered their nomination are requested to 

register the same by submitting Form No. SH-13. Members are requested to submit 

the said details to their depository participants (“DPs”) in case the shares are held by 
them in electronic form and to company in case the shares are held by them in 

physical form.  

9. Members are requested to intimate to the Company, queries if any, regarding the 

accounts at least 10 days before the Annual General Meeting to enable the 

Management to keep the information ready at the Meeting. The queries may be 

addressed to: Company Secretary, Midas Infra Trade Limited, “301, 2633-2634, Bank 
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Street, Karol Bagh, New Delhi- 110005. (E-mail: midasinfratrade@gmail.com). 

Members are requested to bring their copies of Annual Report to the Meeting.  

10. To prevent fraudulent transactions, Members are advised to exercise due diligence 

and notify the Company of any change in address or demise of any member as soon as 

possible. Members are also advised not to leave their dematerialized account(s) 

dormant for long. Periodic statement of holdings should be obtained from the 

concerned Depository Participant and holdings should be verified.  

11. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of 

Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. 

Members holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit the 

PAN to their Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their 

dematerialized accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can submit their 

PAN details to the Company.  

12. Electronic copy of the Notice of the 27th Annual General Meeting of the Company 

inter alia indicating the process and manner of e-voting along with Attendance Slip 

and Proxy Form is being sent to all the Members whose email IDs are registered with 

the Company/Depository Participant(s) for communication purposes, unless any 

Member has requested for a hard copy of the same. For Members who have not 

registered their email address, physical copies of the Notice of the 27th Annual 

General Meeting of the Company inter alia indicating the process and manner of e-

voting along with Attendance Slip and Proxy Form is being sent in the permitted 

mode.  

13. Members may note that the Notice of the 27th Annual General Meeting and the 

Annual Report for 2020-21 will also be available on the Company’s website 
www.mitl.org.in to download. The physical copies of the aforesaid documents will 

also be available at the Company’s Registered Office for inspection during normal 
business hours on working days. Even after registering for e-communication, 

Members are entitled to receive such communication in physical form, upon making a 

request for the same, by post, free of cost. For any communication, the shareholders 

may also send requests to the Company’s investor E-mail id: 

midasinfratrade@gmail.com 

14. In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 

Rules framed thereunder, as amended from time to time, and Regulation 44 of the 

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the 

Members are provided with the facility to cast their vote electronically, through the e-

voting services provided by NSDL, on all resolutions set forth in this Notice.  

15. Mr. Manoj Gupta, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No. FCS 6192), has 

been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the voting and remote e-voting process 

in a fair and transparent manner.  

16. The facility for voting, either through electronic voting system or polling paper shall 

also be made available at the meeting and Members attending the meeting who have 

not already cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their right at 

the Meeting.  

17. The Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the Meeting may 

also attend the Meeting but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.  

 

 

 

 

http://www.mitl/
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VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONICS MEANS 

Pursuant to provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the 

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended by the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015 and Regulation 44 of SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time 

to time, the Company is pleased to provide members facility to exercise their right to vote at 

the 27th Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means and the business may be 

transacted through e-Voting Services. The facility of casting the votes by the members using 

an electronic voting system from a place other than venue of the AGM (“remote e-voting”) 
will be provided by National Securities Depository Limited (NSD)  

The Company has approached NSDL for providing e-voting services through our e-voting 

platform. In this regard, your Demat Account/Folio Number has been enrolled by the 

Company for your participation in e-voting on resolution placed by the Company on e- 

Voting system. 

The Notice of the 27th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company inter alia indicating 

the process and manner of e-Voting process along with printed Attendance Slip and Proxy 

Form can be downloaded from the link www.evoting.nsdl.com or www.mitl.org.in 

The facility for voting through Poling Paper shall be made available at the AGM and the 

members attending the meeting who have not cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be able 

to exercise their right at the meeting through ballot paper. 

 

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS 

UNDER:- 

 

The remote e-voting period begins on September 27, 2021 at 09:00 A.M. and ends on 

September 29, 2021 at 05:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by 

NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of 

Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. September 21,2021  

may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in 

proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the 

cut-off date, being September 21, 2021. 

 

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are 
mentioned below: 

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 

A) Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat 

mode 

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 

Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote 

through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. 

Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts 

in order to access e-Voting facility. 

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 

 

http://www.evoting/
http://www.mitl.org/


14 

 

Type of shareholders  Login Method 

Individual Shareholders 

holding securities in 

demat mode with 

NSDL. 

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL 

Viz. https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or 

on a mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the 

“Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available 

under ‘IDeAS’ section , this will prompt you to enter your 

existing User ID and Password. After successful authentication, 

you will be able to see e-Voting services under Value added 

services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services 

and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company 

name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be 

re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote 

during the remote e-Voting period. 

2. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register 

is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register 
Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by 

typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either 

on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-

Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is 
available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will 

open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit 

demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a 

Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful 

authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site 

wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-

Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to 

e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the 

remote e-Voting period.  

4. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App 

“NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned 
below for seamless voting experience. 

 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/


15 

 

Individual Shareholders 

holding securities in 

demat mode with 

CDSL 

1. Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can login 

through their user id and password. Option will be made available 

to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. The 

URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or 

www.cdslindia.com and click on New System Myeasi. 

2. After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be also able to 

see the E Voting Menu. The Menu will have links of e-Voting 

service provider i.e. NSDL. Click on NSDL to cast your vote. 

3. If the user is not  registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is 

available at 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by 

providing demat Account Number and PAN No. from a link in 

www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the 

user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded 

in the demat Account. After successful authentication, user will 

be provided links for the respective ESP i.e. NSDL where the e-

Voting is in progress. 

Individual Shareholders 

(holding securities in 

demat mode) login 

through their depository 

participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account 

through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for 

e-Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting 

option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to 

NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, 

wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-

Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-

Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-

Voting period  

 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use 

Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any 

technical issues related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode with 

NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 

contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at  

evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 

990  and  1800 22 44 30  
Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode with 

CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 

contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 

23058738 or 022-23058542-43  
 

B) Login Method for e-Voting shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode. 

 

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 

 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login
http://www.cdslindia.com/
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration
http://www.cdslindia.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com


16 

 

URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.  

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which 
is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP 

and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. 

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL 

eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to 

Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below : 

 

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat 

(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical 

 Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in 

demat account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit 

Client ID 

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** 

and Client ID is 12****** then your user 

ID is IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in 

demat account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 

For example if your Beneficiary ID is 

12************** then your user ID is 

12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in 

Physical Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio 

Number registered with the company 

For example if folio number is 001*** 

and EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 

101456001*** 

 

 

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:  

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing 

password to login and cast your vote. 

 

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to 

retrieve the ‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you 
retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the 
system will force you to change your password. 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 

(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the 

company, your ‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your email 
ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open 

the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The 

password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL 

account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for 

shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and 
your ‘initial password’.  

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
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(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below 

in process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered.  

 

6.  If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have 
forgotten your password: 

a)  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your 
demat account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

b)  Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) 
option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a 

request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio 

number, your PAN, your name and your registered address etc. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the 

votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL. 

 

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting 
on the check box. 

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 
9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 

 

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system. 

How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system? 

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in 
which you are holding shares and whose voting cycle  

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-

Voting period Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

3. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify 

the number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and 
also “Confirm” when prompted. 

4. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  

5. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option 

on the confirmation page. 

6. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your 

vote. 

 

General Guidelines for shareholders 

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to 

send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority 

letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who 

are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to mguptacs@gmail.com with a 

copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in. 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take 

utmost care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be 

disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/NewUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
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event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical 

User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the 
password.  

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for 

Shareholders and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download 

section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800 1020 990  and  1800 22 

44 30  or send a request to at evoting@nsdl.co.in  

 

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories/ 

company for procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting 

for the resolutions set out in this notice: 

 

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of 

shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self 

attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of 

Aadhar Card) by email to (midasinfratrade@gmail.com). 

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + 

CLID or 16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated 

Account statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self 

attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to (midasinfratrade@gmail.com). If you are 

an Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to 

refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting 

for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode. 

3. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for 

procuring user id and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned 

documents. 

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by 

Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are 

allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and 

Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile number 

and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting facility. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/NewUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
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OTHER INFORMATION 

 

1. The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, first count 

the votes cast at the Meeting, thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting 

in the presence of at least two witnesses not in the employment of the Company and 

make, not later than 48 hours of conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated Scrutinizer’s 
Report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person 

authorized by him in writing, who shall countersign the same.  

The result declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s 
website www.mitl.org.in and on the website of NSDL www.evoting.nsdl.com immediately. 

The Company shall simultaneously forward the results to National Stock Exchange of India 

Limited and BSE Limited, where the shares of the Company are listed. The results shall also 

be displayed on the notice board at the Registered Office of the Company. 

 

MEMBERS HOLDING EQUITY SHARES IN ELECTRONIC FORM AND PROXIES 

THEREOF, ARE REQUESTED TO BRING THEIR DP ID AND CLIENT ID FOR 

IDENTIFICATION. 

 

  By the order of Board of Directors of  

  Midas Infra Trade Limited 

   

 

 

 

 

   Rajnish Chopra 

Managing Director 

 DIN: 07676838 

Date:  14.08.2021                                                     

Place: New Delhi  

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

                 

http://www.mitl.org.ine/
http://www.evoting/
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MIDAS INFRA TRADE LIMITED 

CIN: L65910DL1994PLC062379 

Regd. Office: 301, 2633-2634, Bank Street Karol Bagh New Delhi-110005 

Tel: 011-42633934, Email Id- midasinfratrade@gmail.com 

Website: www.mitl.org.in 

 

 

ATTENDANCE SLIP 

(To be presented at the entrance) 

 

I/We hereby record my/our presence at 27th Annual General Meeting of the company On 

Thursday, 30th September 2021 At 04:00 P.M. at 301, 2633-2634, Bank Street, Karol Bagh, 

New Delhi-110005 

 

Folio No.______________________________  

 

DP ID No._________________________  

 

Client ID No.______________________ 

 

Name of the Member:                                                                 Signature: 

 

Name of the Proxyholder __________________________   ______________________  

 

Signature_______________________ 

 

 

 

1. Only Member/Proxyholder can attend the Meeting. 

 

2. Member/Proxyholder should bring his/her copy of the Annual Report for reference at 

the Meeting. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

mailto:midasinfratrade@gmail.com
http://www.mitl.org.in/
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MIDAS INFRA TRADE LIMITED 

CIN: L65910DL1994PLC062379 

Regd. Office: 301, 2633-2634, Bank Street Karol Bagh New Delhi-110005 

Tel: 011-42633934, Email Id- midasinfratrade@gmail.com 

Website: www.mitl.org.in 

 

PROXY FORM 

(Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the  

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 

 

Name of the Member(s):…................................................................... 

Registered Address :   ........................................................................... 

E-mail id :.............................................................................................. 

Folio No. / Client ID No….................................................................... 

DP ID No…............................................................................................ 

I/ We, being the member(s) of ….............................Shares of Midas Infra Trade Limited, 

hereby appoint 

1. Name:….............................................................................. 

 E-mail :…............................................................................... 

Address:…............................................................................... 

Signature:…............................................................................ 

or failing him 

2. Name:….................................................... 
 E-mail :…............................................................................... 
Address:…............................................................................... 
Signature:…............................................................................ 
or failing him 

3. Name:….................................................... 
 E-mail :…............................................................................... 
Address:…............................................................................... 
Signature:…............................................................................ 

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 27th 

Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday, 30th September, 2021 at 

04:00 p.m. at 301, 2633-2634, Bank Street, Karol Bagh, New Delhi-110005 and at any 

adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below: 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the 

Financial Year ended March 31, 2021 and the Reports of the Board of Directors and the 

Auditors thereon.  

Signed this ……………….day of ………….......2021. 

Signature of shareholder…………...............................      
Signature of Proxyholder(s)…………………………. 
 

NOTE: This Form in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the 

Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the 

Meeting. 

 

mailto:midasinfratrade@gmail.com
http://www.mitl.org.in/
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To the Members of  

Midas Infra Trade Limited 

 

The Directors are pleased to present the Twenty Seventh Annual Report and the Audited 

Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021: 

 

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS  

 

Particular 2020-21 2019-20 

Revenue from Operations 7159.32 11751.20 

Other Income    176.63       14.37 

Total Income 7335.96 11765.57 

Expenditure:   

Operating Expenses 7176.94 11047.83 

Finance Costs         .72 1.03 

Depreciation / Amortisation     86.29 75.20 

Other Expenses   211.78 590.21 

Total Expenses 7475.73 11714.28 

Profit before exceptional items and taxes  (139.77) 51.28 

Exceptional items        0.00 0.00 

Profit before taxes   (139.77) 51.28 

Tax Expense:   

-Current - 15.00 

-Deferred     8.10 (0.13) 

-Income Tax paid - - 

Profit after taxes for the year (147.88) 36.14 

EPS:   

Basic (0.12) 0.03 

Diluted (0.12) 0.03 

     

    During the financial year 2020-21, the Company has recorded revenue of ₹ 7335.96 Lakh 

compared to revenue ₹ 11765.57 Lakh in the previous year. The Company has due to 

adverse market conditions have incurred a loss of (₹ 147.88) Lakhs during the year as 

compared to profit of ₹ 36.14 Lakhs in the previous year. The Directors are optimistic 

about future performance of the Company. 

 

2. Dividend  

     As the company have incurred loss and have no profit to distribute, it regrets not to 

recommend any dividend. But the directors are hopeful better result in ensuring future.  

 

3. Finance  

 

     The Company expects macro-economic situation to improve with real GDP growth. The 

impact of Covid-19 is huge on the market and it has affected the financial growth of the 

company. Higher fluctuations in gold prices and various rigid regulations have impacted 

growth in the jewellery industry and the company expects to grow through gains in market 

share.  

 

4. Public Deposits 

 

    The Company has not accepted any Public Deposits or any Fixed Deposit during the 

financial year 2020-21 and hence there are no defaults in repayment of amount of 

principle and interest as on the date of Balance Sheet. 
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5. Material changes and commitments affecting financial position between end of the 

financial year and date of report 

 

     There have been no material changes and commitments affecting financial position 

between end of the financial year and the date of the report.  

 

6. Significant and material orders 

 

    There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals 

impacting the going concern status and Company’s operations in future. 
 

7. Particulars of loans, guarantees and investments 

 

     The particulars of loans, guarantees and investments have been disclosed in the financial 

statements. 

 

8. Adequacy of internal controls and compliance with laws 

 

     The Company during the year has reviewed its Internal Financial Control (IFC) systems 

and has continually contributed to establishment of more robust and effective IFC 

framework, prescribed under the ambit of Section 134(5) of Companies Act, 2013. The 

preparation and presentation of the financial statements is pursuant to the control criteria 

defined considering the essential components of Internal Control - as stated in the 

“Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued 

by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)”. The control criteria ensures the 
orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s business, including adherence to its 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, 

the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and the timely preparation of 

reliable financial information. Based on the assessment carried out by the Management 

and the evaluation of the results of the assessment, the Board of Directors are of the 

opinion that the Company has adequate Internal Financial Controls system that is 

operating effectively as at 31st March, 2021. There were no instances of fraud which 

necessitates reporting of material misstatement to the Company’s operations. There has 
been no communication from regulatory agencies concerning non-compliance with or 

deficiencies in financial reporting practices.  

 

9. Audit committee 

 

     The details pertaining to the composition of the audit committee are included in the 

Corporate Governance Report, which is a part of this report.  

 

10. Risk Management 

 

      The requirement of constitution of Risk Management committee is not applicable to the 

Company. 

 

11. Related Party Transactions 

 

   There are no materially significant related party transactions made by the Company with 

Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other designated persons which may 

have a potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large. All related party 

transactions are placed before the Audit Committee and the Board for approval, if 

applicable. Prior omnibus approval of the Audit Committee is obtained for the transactions 

which are of a foreseen and repetitive nature. The transactions entered into pursuant to the 
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omnibus approval so granted are verified by the Internal Auditor and a statement giving 

details of all related party transactions is placed before the Audit Committee and the Board 

of Directors for their approval, if applicable, on a quarterly basis. The Company has 

developed an Internal Guide on Related Party Transactions Manual and prescribed 

Standard Operating Procedures for purpose of identification and monitoring of such 

transactions. The Policy on Related Party Transactions as approved by the Board is 

uploaded on the Company’s website. None of the Directors has any pecuniary 
relationships or transactions vis-à-vis the Company. There were no transactions during the 

year which would require to be reported in Form AOC-2.  

 

12. Subsidiaries / Joint Venture / Associate Company 

 

       As on 31st March 2021, the Company had no subsidiaries/ Associate/ Joint Venture:  

 

13. Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and 

Outgo 

 

     The particulars as prescribed under sub-section (3) (m) of Section 134 of the Act read with 

Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, are furnished in Annexure- I to the Board’s 
Report.  

 

14. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)  

 

     The Company has not developed and implemented any Corporate Social Responsibility 

initiatives as the said provisions are not applicable.  

 

15. Extract of Annual Return 

 

     As provided under Section 92(3) of the Act, the extract of annual return is given in 

Annexure-II in the prescribed Form MGT-9, which forms part of this Report.  

 

16. Dividend Distribution Policy 

 

       The Dividend Distribution Policy is annexed as Annexure-III.  

 

17. Vigil Mechanism 

 

    The Company has a whistle blower mechanism wherein the employees can approach the 

Management of the Company (Audit Committee in case where the concern involves the 

Senior Management) and make protective disclosures to the Management about unethical 

behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct. The 
Whistle Blower Policy requires every employee to promptly report to the Management 

any actual or possible violation of the Code or an event he becomes aware of that could 

affect the business or reputation of the Company. The disclosures reported are addressed 

in the manner and within the time frames prescribed in the policy. A mechanism is in 

place whereby any employee of the Company has access to the Chairman of the Audit 

Committee to report any concern. No person has been denied access to the Chairman to 

report any concern. Further, the said policy has been disseminated within the organisation 

and has also been posted on the Company’s website.  
 

18. Secretarial Standards 

 

    The Directors state that the applicable Secretarial Standards i.e SS-1 and SS-2, issued by 

the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, relating to Meeting of Board of Directors 

and General Meetings respectively have been duly complied with. 



26 

 

 

19. Disclosures as per the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 

Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 

 

    The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted a 

policy on prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at workplace in line 

with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 

Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the rules thereunder for prevention and redressal 

of complaints of sexual harassment at workplace. During the financial year 2020-21, the 

Company had received no complaints on sexual harassment, all were disposed-off with 

appropriate action taken and no complaint remains pending as of 31st March 2021.  

 

20. Details in respect of Frauds reported by Auditors under sub-section (12) of Section 

143 other than those which are reportable to the Central Government 

  

    The Statutory Auditors of the Company have not reported any fraud as specified under the 

second proviso of Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory 

modification(s) or re-enactment(s) for the time being in force). 

 

21. Corporate Governance 

 

    As per SEBI Listing Regulations, a Management Discussion and Analysis, Corporate 

Governance Report and Auditors’ Certificate regarding compliance of conditions of 

Corporate Governance forms part of the Annual Report.  

 

22. Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 

 

     Mr. Bhagat Ram and Mr. Shyam Sundar are the Independent Directors and all have given 

declarations that they continue to meet the criteria of independence as laid down under 

Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25 of the Listing Regulations. 

 

     Subsequently, Mr. Jitender Pratap Singh, resigned from Directorship of the Company 

w.e.f. 28th May, 2020 and Mrs. Madhvi Gupta, resigned from Directorship of the 

Company w.e.f. 01st November, 2020 

 

     In accordance with the provisions of the Act and in terms of the Memorandum and 

Articles of Association of the Company, there is no director in the Company who can be 

retires by rotation at the Annual General Meeting. 

 

     None of the Directors is related to each other within the meaning of the term “relative” as 
per Section 2(77) of the Act. 

 

     Mrs. Ritu Nagpal was resigned from the position of Company Secretary under Key 

Managerial Personnel category w.e.f 4th September, 2020. 

 

    Ms. Astha Wahi was appointed as Company Secretary w.e.f 18th September, 2020. Further, 

she resigned from the position w.e.f. 15th October, 2020. 

 

     Mr. Murari Lal was also appointed as Chief Financial Officer of the Company on 28th 

May, 2020. 

 

     Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Act, the following are the Key managerial 

personnel of the Company:  

 

1. Mr. Rajnish Chopra- Managing Director 



27 

 

2. Mr. Murari Lal- Chief Financial Officer 

3. Mr. Praveen Kumar – Company Secretary W.e.f. 07.04.2021 

 

23. Directors’ Responsibility Statement 
 

    Based on the framework of Internal Financial Controls and compliance systems established 

and maintained by the Company, the work performed by the internal, statutory and 

secretarial auditors and external consultants, including audit of internal financial controls 

over financial reporting by the statutory auditors and the reviews performed by 

Management and the relevant Board Committees, including the Audit Committee, the 

Board is of the opinion that the Company’s internal financial controls are adequate and 
operating effectively during FY 2020-21.  

 

     Accordingly, pursuant to the requirements of Section 134 (5) of the Act, the Directors 

hereby confirm that:  

 

i. in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have 

been followed and there are no material departures;  

ii. they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair 

view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the 

profit of the Company for that period;  

iii. they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 

records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the 

Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

iv. they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;  

v. they have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that 

such internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively;  

vi. they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

 

24. Board Evaluation 

 

     The performance evaluation of the Board, its Committees and individual Directors was 

conducted and the same was based on questionnaire and feedback from all the Directors 

on the Board as a whole, its Committees and self-evaluation pursuant to the provisions of 

the Companies Act, 2013, SEBI Listing Regulations and the Guidance Note on Board’s 
Evaluation issued by SEBI on 5th January, 2017.  

 

     The Chairperson of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) held separate 

discussions with each of the Directors of the Company and obtained their feedback on 

overall Board effectiveness as well as on each of the other Directors.  

 

     Based on the questionnaire and feedback, the performance of every Director was 

evaluated by the NRC. 

 

     Some of the key criteria for performance evaluation, as laid down by the NRC were as 

follows-  

 

Performance evaluation of Directors:  

• Contribution at Board / Committee meetings  
• Guidance / Support to Management outside Board/ Committee Meetings  
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Performance evaluation of Board and Committees:  

• Board structure and composition  
• Degree of fulfillment of key responsibilities  
• Establishment and delineation of responsibilities to Committees 

• Effectiveness of Board Processes, Information and Functioning  
• Board Culture and Dynamics  
• Quality of relationship between the Board and Management  
• Efficacy of communication with External Stakeholders 

• Committees – strengths and areas of improvement  

 

25. Independent Directors 

 

     A separate meeting of the independent directors (“Annual ID Meeting”) was convened, 
which reviewed the performance of the Board (as a whole), the non-independent directors 

and the Chairman. Post the Annual ID Meeting, the collective feedback of each of the 

Independent Directors was discussed by the Chairperson of the NRC with the Board 

covering performance of the Board as a whole, performance of the non-independent 

directors and performance of the Board Chairman.  

 

26. Remuneration Policy 

 

     The Board has, on the recommendation of the NRC framed a policy for selection and 

appointment of Directors, Senior Management and their remuneration. The Remuneration 

Policy is stated in the Corporate Governance Report. 

 

27. Policy on Directors’ appointment and remuneration and other details 

 

      The guidelines for selection of Independent Directors are as set out below:  

 

     The Board Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“Committee”) oversees the 
Company’s nomination process for Independent Directors and in that connection to 
identify, screen and review individuals qualified to serve as an Independent Director on 

the Board.  

 

     Process for selection 

     The Committee may act on its own in identifying potential candidates. The Committee 

shall review and discuss details pertaining to candidates and will conduct evaluation of 

candidates in accordance with the process that it sees fit and appropriate and thereafter 

pass on its recommendation for nomination to the Board, based on the following 

guidelines:  

 

    Attributes 

 

i) The Committee shall seek candidates who is not a nominee or related to either 

Promoter of the Company. Such candidates shall possess integrity, leadership skills, 

managerial qualities, foresight abilities and competency required to direct and oversee 

the Company’s management in the best interest of its stakeholders i.e. shareholders, 
customers, employees and communities it serves.  

ii) The candidate must be willing to regularly attend the meetings of the Board and 

develop a strong understanding of the Company, it’s businesses and it’s needs, to 
contribute his/ her time and knowledge to the Company and to be prepared to exercise 

his/her duties with skill and care. Besides these, the candidate should have an 

understanding of governance concepts and legal duties of a Director. 
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iii) It is desirable that the candidate should have expertise to fill in the gap(s) identified by 

the Company in the current composition of the Board.  

iv) The candidate’s age shall not exceed 70 years at the time of joining the Board. 
v) Forthrightness and ability to possess foresight abilities in the Governance of a 

Corporate. Board Composition Keeping in mind that women constitute a majority of 

the Company’s customers it would be desirable to have optimum number of the 
Board’s strength represented by woman members.  

 

     Procedure  

 

i) The Committee may retain search firms or advisors as it deems appropriate to identify 

candidates.  

ii) Develop a list of potential candidates of Independent Directors which may be refreshed 

every year. The Committee to create a list of probable candidates from known sources 

or from the database of Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India or Stock 

Exchanges. 

iii) The Committee may also consider profiles of suitable expatriates.  

iv) The candidate considered by the Committee as potentially qualified will be contacted to 

determine their interest in being considered to serve on the Board and if interested will 

be interviewed. As and when a candidate is shortlisted, the Committee will make a 

formal recommendation to the Board.  

 

28. Other Disclosures  

 

      The information required under Section 197 of the Act read with Rule 5(1) of the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are 

given below: 

  

i) The remuneration of Director of the Company for the financial year:  

 

Sl. No. Name of the Managing director Remuneration 

A Rajnish Chopra NIL 

 

        Note: Remuneration includes sitting fees and commission for Non-Executive Directors.  

 

29. Information as per Rule 5(2) of the Chapter XIII, the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 

     The statement containing names of top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn and 

the particulars of employees as required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 

5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 

2014, is provided in a separate annexure forming part of this report. Further, the report and 

the accounts are being sent to the members excluding the aforesaid annexure. In terms of 

Section 136 of the Act, the said annexure is open for inspection at the Registered Office of 

the Company. Any shareholder interested in obtaining a copy of the same may write to the 

Company Secretary.  

30. AUDITORS 

a) Statutory Auditors 

    The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 1st September, 2018 have 

appointed M/s Apra & Associates, LLP, Chartered Accountants, (FRN: 011078N), 

subject to approval of shareholders at ensuing Annual General Meeting, to hold office 
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from the conclusion of 25th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 29th Annual 

General Meeting. 

     The Board recommends to the members of the Company approval of appointment of 

M/s. Apra & Associates, LLP, Chartered Accountants, (FRN: 011078N), as the Statutory 

Auditors of the Company. Your Company has received a letter from M/s. Apra & 

Associates, LLP, Chartered Accountants, (FRN: 011078N), to the effect that their 

appointment, if made, would be under the second and third proviso to Section 139 (1) of 

the Companies Act, 2013 and that they are not disqualified within the meaning of 

Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 4(1) of the Companies (Audit 

and Auditors) Rules, 2014. 

     STATUTORY AUDITOR’S REPORT the Auditors have given an audit report on 

financial of 2020-21 and annexed herewith 

     Statutory Auditor’s Observations: The observations made by Auditor with reference to 

notes to account are self-explanatory and need no comments. 

b) Secretarial Audit 

     Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the 

Company has appointed M/s. KMPM & Co., (Company Secretaries) to undertake the 

Secretarial Audit of the Company. The Report of the Secretarial Audit is annexed 

herewith as Annexure-IV.  
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ANNEXURE – I 

 

[Pursuant To Section 134 Of The Act And Rule 8 Of The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 

2014] 

 

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADAPTATION AND INNOVAT ION 

 

The Company liaises with various research institutes in India for research support and 

continuous to work on cutting edge technologies in the jewellery industry. The company has 

engaged technical experts in specific areas of operations for developing capability and 

adopting benchmark process technologies.  

 

The Division also engages with the artisan community in the extended eco-system for process 

simplifications and technical inputs. Processes are continuously evaluated from safety, 

quality and productivity perspectives and process automations were suitably adopted.  

 

CONSERVATVAION OF ENERGY & FUEL 

 

The Company takes responsible approach towards consumption of natural resources, 

focusing on maximizing conservation and minimizing environmental impact due to its 

business activities. Lightings have been replaced with LEDs in its premises for better energy 

efficiency and only LED lightings were used for all the new projects, further Jewellery 

Division has taken various energy conservation initiatives which has led to cumulative 

savings. 

 

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

 

During the year under review, the Company earned no foreign expenditure or earning. 
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Annexure –II 

Form No. MGT-9 

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

as on the financial year ended on 31st March 2021 

[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

 

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS: 

 

i. CIN L65910DL1994PLC062379 

ii. Registration Date 26.10.1994 

iii. Name Of Company Midas Infra Trade Limited 

iv. Category Of Company Having Share Capital  

V Sub-Category Of Company Indian Non-Government Company 

vi. 
Address of the Registered office 

& contact details 

301, 2633-2634, Bank Street, Karol Bagh,  

New Delhi-110005, Tel: 011-42633934 

Email: midasinfratrade@gmail.com 

vii. Listed/Unlisted Listed 

viii. 

Name, Address & contact details 

of Registrar & Transfer Agent, 

if any 

Skyline Financial Services (P) Ltd. 

D-153A, 1st Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase -

I, New Delhi - 110 020 

 

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVIES OF THE COMPANY  

   All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company 

shall be stated:- 

Sl. No Name and Description of main 

Products / Services  

NIC Code of the 

Product / Service  

% to total turnover 

of the Company  

1. Jewellery Business  3211 100% 

 

III.  PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

–NA 

 

S.N. 

 

Name And Address 

Of The Company 

CIN/GLN Holding/Subsidiar

y/Associate 

%Of Shares 

Held 

Applicable 

Section 

NIL 

 

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as Percentage of 

Total Equity) 

i. Category-wise share Holding  

Category of 

Shareholders 

No. of Shares held at the beginning 

of the year 

No. of Shares held at the end of the 

year 

% 

Change 

during Demat Physical Total % of 

Total 

Shares 

Demat Physical Total  % of 

Total   

Share

 

A. Promoters  

(1)  Indian          

a)   Individual/HUF 28,825 21,94,400 22,23,225 1.82 14,389 21,94,400 22,08,789 1.81 (0.01) 

b) Central Govt. - - - - - - - - - 

c)  State Govt. - - - - - - - - - 
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d)  Bodies 

Corporate 
- - - - - - - - - 

e)  Bank/FI - - - - - - - - - 

f)  Any other. - - - - - - - - - 

   Sub Total(A)(1):- 28,825 21,94,400 22,23,225 1.82 14,389 21,94,400 22,08,789 1.81 (0.01) 

(2) Foreign - - - - - - - - - 

a)  NRIs - Individuals - - - - - - - - - 

b) Other - Individuals   -  -  -   -  -   -   -   -   - 

c)  Bodies Corporate - - - - - - - - - 

d)  Banks/FI - - - - - - - - - 

e)  Any Other…. - - - - - - - - - 

   Sub Total (A)(2):- - - - - - - - - - 

Total Shareholding  

of Promoter(A)=(A)    

(1)+ (A)(2) 

 28,825 21,94,400 22,23,225 1.82 

 

14,389 21,94,400 22,08,789 1.81 

 

(0.01) 

B. Public Shareholding 

1.   Institutions 

a)  Mutual Funds - 5,87,000 5,87,000      .48 - 5,87,000  5,87,000  .48  - 

b)  Banks/FI - - - - - - - - - 

c)  Central Govt. - - - - - - - - - 

d)  State Govt.(s) - - - - - - - - - 

e)  Venture Capital 

Funds 

- 
- - - - - - - - 

f)  Insurance       

Companies 

- 
- - - - - - - - 

g)  FIIs - - - - - - - - - 

h)  Foreign Venture    

Capital Funds 

- 
- - - - - - - - 

i)   Other (specify) - - - - - - - - - 

     Sub Total (B)(1):- - 5,87,000 5,87,000   .48 - 5,87,000  5,87,000  .48  - 

2. Non Institutions 

a) Bodies Corporate 

- 
i)   Indian 9064673 150000 9214673 7.55 9067907 150000 9217907 7.55 - 

ii)  Overseas - - - - - - - - - 

b)  Individuals 

- i)  Individual  

shareholders 

     holding nominal 

     share capital upto   

2 Lakh 

1151033 6486300 7637333 6.26 1150323 6486300 7636623 6.259  (0.01) 
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ii) Shareholding Of Promoters 

SI. 

No. 

Shareholders 

Name 

Shareholding at the beginning 

of the year (as on 01.04.2020) 

Shareholding at the end of the 

year (as on 31.03.2021) 

% Change on 

Shareholding 

during the 

year 
No. of 

Shares 

% of total 

shares of 

the 

company 

% of pledged/ 

Encumbered 

to total shares 

No. of 

Shares 

% of total 

shares of 

the 

company 

% of pledged/ 

Encumbered 

to total shares 

1. M L Bhatia 1250000 1.02  1250000 1.02  - 

2. 
Hari Om 

Bhatia 
218100 0.18  218100 0.18  - 

3. Sunita Bhatia 187100 0.15  187100 0.15  - 

4. Neelam Bhatia 130000 0.11  100000 0.11  - 

5. Ashok Bhatia 100000 0.08  100000 0.08  - 

6 
Vijay Kumar 

Bhatia 
37000 0.03  37000 0.03  - 

7 Radha Bhatia 37000 0.03  37000 0.03  - 

8 

 
Arti Bhatia 37000 0.03  37000 0.03  - 

9 

 
Krishna Bhatia 35100 0.03  35100 0.03  - 

10 Phool Bhatia 30000 0.02  30000 0.02  - 

11 Swaran Bhatia 30000 0.02  30000 0.02  - 

 12 Sonam Bhatia 30000 0.02  30000 0.02  - 

13 
Hari Om Bhatia 

Huf 
28000 0.02  28000 0.02  - 

14 
Sandeep 

Bhatia 
33925 0.02  13389 0.01  (0.01) 

15 
Asha Devi 

Bhatia 
14000 0.01  8000 0.01  - 

16 
M L Bhatia 

Huf 
8000 0.01  8000 0.01  - 

17 Neeru Bhatia 6000 0  6000 0  - 

18 M Bhatia 6000 0  6000 0  - 

19 

Raj 

Nandkishore 

Bhatia 

5000 0  6000 0  - 

20 

Sanjay 

Diwanchandra 

Bhatia 

1000 0  6000 0  - 

     Total Public      

Shareholding 

(B)= (B)(1) + (B)(2) 
110187475 9589300 119776775 98.18 110201911 9589300 119791211 98.18 - 

C. Shares Held By 

Custodian For 

Gdrs & Adrs 

- - - - - - - - - 

GRAND TOTAL 

  (A)+(B)+(C) 
110216300 11783700 122000000 100 

11021630
0 11783700 122000000 100 - 
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Total 2223225 1.82  2208789 1.81   

 

iii)  Change in Promoters shareholding (Please Specify, if there is no change) 

 

PARTICULARS 

 

Shareholding at the 

beginning of the year 

Cumulative Shareholding 

during the year 

No. of 

Share  

 % of total 

of share of 

company 

No. of 

share  

% of Total 

shares of the 

company 

At the beginning of the year 2223225 1.82 2223225 1.82 

Increase/Decrease in Promoters Share 

holding the year specifying the reasons for 

increase / decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer 

/bonus/sweat equity etc.) 

(14436) (.01) (14436) (.01) 

At the end of year 
2208789 1.81 2208789 1.81 

 

iv)  Shareholding Pattern of top ten shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and 

Holder of GDRs and ADRs) 

 

 

 

Shareholding At the 

beginning of the year 

Cumulative 

Shareholding during the 

year 

For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders  No. of 

Shares  

% of total 

shares of 

the 

company  

No. of 

shares  

% of total 

of the 

company 

At the beginning of the year 
38203000  31.33 38203000  31.33 

Increase/Decrease in Shareholding during the 

year specifying the reasons for increase / 

decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer /bonus/sweat 

equity etc.) 

- - - - 

At the end of year (or on the date of 

separation during the year) 
38203000  31.33 38203000  31.33 

 

v) Shareholding of Director and Key Managerial Personnel: 

 

 Shareholding at the 

beginning of the year 

Cumulative 

Shareholding during the 

year 

For Each of the Directors and KMP No. of 

Shares 

% of total 

shares of the 

company 

No, of 

shares 

% of total 

shares of the 

company 

At the beginning of the year 0  0 0 0 

Date wise Increase/Decrease in 

Shareholding during the year specifying the 

reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. 

allotment/transfer /bonus/sweat equity etc.) 

- - - - 

At the end of year 0 0 0 0 

 

 



36 

 

vi)  Indebtedness 

 

Indebtedness of the company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment 

 

 Secured Loans 

excluding deposits 

Unsecured 

Loans 

Deposits Total 

Indebtedness 

Indebtedness at the 

beginning of the year 

    

(i)Principal Amount  -  - - - 

(ii)Interest due but not paid -  - - - 

(iii)Interest accrued but not 

due   

-  - - - 

  Total (i+ii+iii)  

 

   

Change in Indebtedness 

during the financial year 

➢ Addition 

➢ Reduction  

- - - - 

Net Charge -  - - - 

Indebtedness at the end of 

the financial year  

(i)Principal Amount  

(ii)Interest due but not paid 

(iii)Interest accrued but not 

due   

- - - - 

Total (i+ii+iii) - - - - 

 

vii) Remuneration Of Directors And Key Managerial Personnel 

 

A. Remuneration to managing Director, Whole -time Directors and / or Manager: 

NA 

 

Sl.

No 

Particulars of Remuneration  Name of MD/ WTD 

/ Manager 

Total Amount 

1. Gross Salary  

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 

17(1) of the Income –tax Act,1961 

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income tax Act, 

1961 

(c) Profit in lieu of salary under section 17(3) 

Income tax Act,1961 

- - - - - 

  2. Stock Option  - - - - - 

  3.  Sweat Equity   - - - - - 

  4. Commission  

- As % of profit  

- others, Specify… 

- - - - - 

  5. Others, please specify  - - - - - 

  Total (A) - - - - - 

 Ceiling as per the Act  - - - - - 
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B. Remunerations to others Director  

 

  Particulars of Remuneration Name of Director  Total 

Amount  

1. Independent Directors 

• Fee for attending board committee 

meetings  

• Commission 

• Others, Please specify 

- - - - - 

Total (1)  - - - - - 

2. Other Non – Executive Directors 

• Fee for attending board committee 

meetings  

• Commission  

• Others, please specify 

- - - - - 

   Total (2)  - - - - - 

   Total (B) = (1+2)  - - - - - 

   Total Managerial Remuneration  - - - - - 

   Overall Ceiling as per the Act  - - - - - 

 

C. Remuneration To Key Mamagerial Personnel Other Than Md/ Manager/WTD:  

 

SL. 

No. 

Particulars of Remuneration                    Key Managerial  Personnel 

1. Gross Salary 

 

CEO Company  

Secretary 

CFO Total 

 (a) Salary as per provisions contained in 

section 17(1) of the Income –tax Act,1961 

- Ritu 

Nagpal & 

Astha 

Wahi 

- ₹ 3,50,000/- 

 (b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income tax 

Act, 1961  

- - - - 

 (c) Profit in lieu of salary under section 17(3) 

Income tax Act,1961 

- - - - 

2. Stock Option   - - - - 

3. Sweat Equity   - - - - 

4. Commission 

- As  % of profit  

- Others specify….. 

- - - - 

5. Others, Please specify   - - - - 

 Total - - - ₹ 3,50,000/- 

 

viii)  Penalties / Punishment / Compounding of Offences: 

 

Type Section of the 

companies 

Act 

Brief 

Description 

Details of Penalty 

/ Punishment / 

Compounding 

fees imposed 

Authority 

[RD / NCLT 

/ COURT ] 

Appeal 

made, if 

any (give 

Details) 

A. COMPANY  
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 Penalty - - - - - 

 Punishment - - - - - 

Compounding - - - - - 

B. DIRECTORS 

Penalty - - - - - 

Punishment - - - - - 

Compounding - - - - - 

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT 

Penalty - - - - - 

Punishment - - - - - 

Compounding - - - - - 
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ANNEXURE – III 
DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION POLICY 

 

SCOPE AND PURPOSE 

The Securities Exchange Board of India (SEBI) on July 8, 2016 has notified the SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second Amendment) Regulations, 

2016(Regulations). Vide these Regulations, SEBI has inserted Regulation 43A after 

Regulation 43 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, which requires the Company to frame 

and adopt a Dividend Distribution Policy, which shall be disclosed in its Annual Report and 

on its website. Accordingly, this Dividend Distribution Policy has been adopted by the 

Company. 

 

OBJECTIVE 

The objective of this Policy is to ensure the right balance between the quantum of Dividend 

paid and amount of profits retained in the business for various purposes. Towards this end, 

the Policy lays down parameters to be considered by the Board of Directors of the Company 

for declaration of Dividend from time to time. 

 

EFFECTIVE DATE 

The Policy shall become effective from the date of its adoption by the Board i.e. 4th 

November, 2016. 

 

KEY PARA METERS TO BE CONSIDERED WHILE DECLARING THE 

DIVIDEND 

In line with the objective stated above, the Board of Directors of the Company shall consider 

the following parameters for declaration of Dividend: 

 

Financial Parameters / Internal Factors: 

The Board of Directors of the Company would consider the following financial parameters 

before declaring or recommending dividend to shareholders: 

• Consolidated net operating profit after tax; 
• Working capital requirements; 

• Capital expenditure requirements; 
• Resources required to fund acquisitions and / or new businesses 

• Cash flow required to meet contingencies; 
• Outstanding borrowings; 
• Past Dividend Trends 

 

External Factors: 

The Board of Directors of the Company would consider the following external factors before 

declaring or recommending dividend to shareholders: 

• Prevailing legal requirements, regulatory conditions or restrictions laid down under the 

applicable laws including tax laws; 

• Dividend pay-out ratios of companies in the same industry. 

 

Circumstances under which the shareholders may or may not expect Dividend: 

The shareholders of the Company may not expect Dividend under the following 

circumstances: 

• Whenever it undertakes or proposes to undertake a significant expansion project requiring 

higher allocation of capital, if any; 

• Significantly higher working capital requirements adversely impacting free cash flow; 

• Whenever it undertakes any acquisitions or joint ventures requiring significant allocation of 

capital; 

• Whenever it proposes to utilise surplus cash for buy-back of securities; or 

• In the event of inadequacy of profits or whenever the Company has incurred losses. 
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Utilization of retained earnings: 

The Company may declare dividend out of the profits of the Company for the year or out of 

the profits for any previous year or years or out of the free reserves available for distribution 

of Dividend, after having due regard to the parameters laid down in this Policy. 

 

Parameters adopted with regard to various classes of shares: 

Presently, the Authorised Share Capital of the Company is divided into equity share of Re. 1 

each. At present, the issued and paid-up share capital of the Company comprises only of 

equity shares. 

 

The Company shall first declare dividend on outstanding preference shares, if any, at the rate 

of dividend fixed at the time of issue of preference shares and thereafter, the dividend would 

be declared on equity shares. As and when the Company issues other kind of shares, the 

Board of Directors may suitably amend this Policy. 

 

Procedure: 

The agenda of the Board of Directors where Dividend declaration or recommendation is 

proposed shall contain the rationale of the proposal. Pursuant to the provisions of applicable 

laws and this Policy, interim Dividend approved by the Board of Directors will be confirmed 

by the shareholders and final Dividend, if any, recommended by the Board of Directors, will 

be subject to shareholders’ approval, at the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the 

Company. 

 

The Company shall ensure compliance of provisions of Applicable Laws and this Policy in 

relation to Dividend declared by the Company. 

 

Disclosure: 

The Company shall make appropriate disclosures as required under the SEBI Regulations. 

 

General: 

This Policy would be subject to revision/amendment in accordance with the guidelines as 

may be issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Securities Exchange Board of India or such 

other regulatory authority as may be authorized, from time to time, on the subject matter. 

 

The Company reserves its right to alter, modify, add, delete or amend any of the provisions of 

this Policy. 

 

In case of any amendment(s), clarification(s), circular(s) etc. issued by the relevant 

authorities, not being consistent with the provisions laid down under this Policy, then such 

amendment(s), clarification(s), circular(s) etc. shall prevail upon the provisions hereunder 

and this Policy shall stand amended accordingly from the effective date as laid down under 

such amendment(s), clarification(s), circular(s) etc. 
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Form No. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31/03/2021 

 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 

To 

 

The Members 

Midas Infra Trade Limited 

301, 2633-2634, Bank Street 

Karol Bagh, New Delhi-110005 

 

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions 

and the adherence to good corporate practices by Midas Infra Trade Limited (hereinafter 

called the ‘Company’). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a 

reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing 

my opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns 

filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the 

Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial 

audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period 

covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2021 complied with the statutory provisions 

listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-

mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 

records maintained by Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2021, according 

to the provisions of:  

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 

The Company has not duly constituted the Board, Nomination & Remuneration 

Committee, Audit Committee and has not appointed Independent Directors in accordance 

with the Provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 & SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;  

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;  

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder 

to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External 

Commercial Borrowings; 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): 

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;  

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 

Regulations, 1992;  
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c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2009;  

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and 

Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; [No transaction has been 

recorded during the Audit Period] 

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 

Regulations, 2008; [No transaction has been recorded during the Audit Period] 

f) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 

Agents) Regulations, 1993; 

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 

2009; and; [No transaction has been recorded during the Audit Period] 

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 

1998; [No transaction has been recorded during the Audit Period] 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

i. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

ii. The Listing Agreements/Regulations entered into by the Company with National 

Stock Exchange. 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, 

Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above without any reservation. 

We further report the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper 

balance of Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of 

the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in 

compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed 

notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and 

obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for 

meaningful participation at the meeting. 

All decisions of the Board were unanimous and the same are captured and recorded as part of 

the minutes. 

We further report that based on the information received and records maintained there are 

adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations 

of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations 

and guidelines etc. 

Disclaimer: It is to be noted that due to the prevailing nationwide pandemic scenario and 

unavoidable work from home circumstances, our team could not follow the usual course of 

audit procedure which includes physical verification of the requisite compliances. Our 

opinion, as stated in the report is based on documents and information as made available by 

the Company via email and discussion. 
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Thanking you, 

For M/S KMPM & CO 

(Company Secretaries) 

 

 

 

 

 

Manish Kumar Singh               

FRN: P2020DE081800                         Place: New Delhi 

CP No : 18611                                                                                            

M.No.: 50969 

 

 

Observations 

 

a) The Company has not duly constituted the Board, Nomination & Remuneration 

Committee and has not appointed Independent Directors in accordance with the 

Provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 & SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015 

 

b) As per the provision of section 149(1) of second proviso of the Companies Act, 2013, 

the Company has not appointed a Women Director in the Board, as per the provision of 

section 149(1) of second proviso of the Companies Act, 2013    

 

c) During the period under review, the Company has duly conducted the Board Meeting. 

However, the Company has not convened the Annual General Meeting for the financial 

year 2019-20 within prescribed time i.e. on or before 30.09.2020 (extended upto 

31.12.2020 in pursuant to MCA circular). 

 

d) During the period under review, As per Rule 9A of Companies (Prospectus and 

Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014 the 100% of shareholding of promoter(s) and 

promoter group is not in dematerialized form. 

 

e) During the period under review the Company required  to appoint Independent Director 

arise  due to resignation furnished by independent Directors as per the (Second Proviso 

to Rule 4 of Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors)to fill the said 

casual vacancy. Further the Company has not appoint Women Director as per First 

Proviso of section 149(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

f) As per Section 150 of the Companies Act, 2013 and MCA Circular dated 22nd October 

2019, Every Directors who has been appointed or intends to be appointed as an 

Independent Director shall apply online to the institute for inclusion of his name in the 

data bank, in this regard we stated that none of Independent Directors are registered in 

independent director databank. 
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Annexure – 1 

 

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter: 

(1) Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the 

Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my 

audit.  

(2) I have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was 

done on test-check basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I 

believe that the process and practices, I followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion. 

(3) I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of 

accounts of the Company.  

(4) Wherever required, I have obtained the Management Representation about the compliance 

of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events, etc.  

(5) The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, 

regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to 

the verification of procedure on test-check basis.  

(6) The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 

Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the 

affairs of the Company.  

 

For M/S KMPM & CO 

(Company Secretaries) 

 

 

 

Manish Kumar Singh                             

FRN: P2020DE081800                            Place: New Delhi 

COP No : 18611                                                                                                

M.No.:  50969 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 

The formalization of economy continued to receive boost with GST introduction. The 

Company is now a major beneficiary with significant market share gains in jewellery. 

Wedding jewellery and high value studded being the focus, success of gold exchange 

programs and focus on markets will help significant gain in market share. The Company has 

continued its cost focus with Quantum Leap.  

 

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS 

 

The Gems & Jewellery (“G & J”) sector is one of the very important sectors of the Indian 
economy with a significant share of the Gross Domestic Product (“GDP”). One of the fastest 
growing sectors, it is extremely export oriented and labour intensive. The Indian G & J sector 

is a big forex earner for India and currently contributes 10-12% of total exports.  

 

India has established itself as the world’s largest manufacturing center of cut & polished 
diamonds, contributing 60% of the world’s supply in terms of value, 85% in terms of volume 

and 92% in terms of pieces. India is also one of the largest gold jewellery exporters in the 

world.  

 

The domestic jewellery segment has two major characteristics;  

 

(i) it is highly fragmented and continues to be dominated by a very large number of 

small players, the majority of whom are unorganized and outside the regulatory 

norms;  

 

(ii) a very large percentage of jewellery (almost 70% according to some reports) 

which gets sold in the country is on account of weddings and wedding related 

functions. 

 

In addition to this traditional and steady state of jewellery demand, the jewellery demand is 

also increasing steadily due to changes in its role from just being an item of adornment and as 

a store of value to a life style and fashion accessory. Rising quality awareness of customers 

has provided a fillip to the organized retail segment, which is banking on its ‘reliability’ and 
‘quality’ to compete against the highly fragmented unorganized jewellers. Organized players 
have steadily chipped away market share from smaller/ unorganized retailers by addressing 

the need for enhanced experience of a demanding customer base, which is marked by shifting 

demographic and socio-economic profiles. Jewellery consumption in India has been 

traditionally driven by the strong cultural affinity for gold, with it being the preferred form of 

jewellery worn. Gold jewellery is an integral part of weddings in India, and is considered as a 

necessity, with wedding related demand accounting for substantial portion of overall 

jewellery demand, especially in the South. Jewellery demand has also been supported by the 

increasing appetite for gold jewellery from rural and non-urban markets. Gold has also served 

as a means of savings especially for the rural sector, owing to the lack of any major 

alternative investment options supported by its anti-inflationary characteristics. However, in 

the past few years the demand for diamond jewellery has also been showing an increasing 

trend, especially in the Metros and Tier I cities. 

 

PRODUCT WISE PERFORMANCE 

 

The Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing, sale and trading of jewellery. 

However, jewellery is further classified into gold jewellery, diamond jewellery, polki and 

others. The Company operates in only domestic sales. For the year ended March 31, 2021, 

the share of revenues from sales is Rs.715.93 lakh.  
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The year 2020-21 

 

The Covid-19 during the financial year has caused adverse effect on the working of the 

company. However, the company have made every efforts in reducing the negative impacts 

of Covid-19. This beginning was under-pinned by the following factors: 

 • An attitude of obsessive result orientation and agility across the organization • A focused brand organization, resulting from the smooth closure of the Gold Plus 

brand • Continuing consumer interest in the category, swaying more and more to the beats of 

adornment • Government regulations sending more and more consumers towards respectable, 

organized players and simultaneously constraining the mid-sized jewelers in their ease 

of doing business 

 

FY 2020-21 

 

Five platforms for growth had been identified by the business for the 3X ambition outlined 

for financial year 2020-21, these are: 

 • Wedding Segment • High Value Diamond Jewellery Segment • World finest Diamond Jewellery • Regular wearing Jewellery • Expanding Jewelry Business 

 

Jewellery Exchange 

 

Indian consumers have the largest stock-pile of jewellery and gold in the world, 

approximately 25,000+ tonnes 

• The exchange value offered by Midas Company is the best and most transparent in the 
industry 

 

Operational Excellence 

 

1. Design and Launch of new collections 

 

The Company continues to be the benchmark in the industry. Matured processes, 

substantial emphasis on innovation and collaborating teams are taking this 

continuously forward 

 

2. Merchandising Effectiveness and Supply Chain Industry-leading thinking, 

Processes and IT solutions continue to keep the Division ahead, delivering very good 

Gross Margin and Stock Turns 

 

3. Manufacturing and Vendor Partnering Significant investments are being 

planned to upgrade various parts of the back-bone 

 

i.    Synthetic diamond detection 

ii.   Warehouse automation 

iii.  Gold jewellery manufacturing 

iv.  Vendor partner infrastructure upgradation 

 

4. Bullion Management 
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After a successful piloting of importing and refining the Dore ore, the Division is stepping up 

this part of gold sourcing during FY2020-21 and is hoping to deliver additional margin to the 

business over time 

 

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS 

 

Some of the opportunities for the retail jewellery industry are as follows:  

 

(a) Growing consciousness amongst customers for branded jewellery.  

(b) Limited penetration of organized jewellery in the country.  

(c) Increase in purchasing power of the customers in the Tier I & II locations.  

(d) Increasing demand for diamond jewellery, which is a high margin product as compared to 

the gold   jewellery.  

(e) Favorable demographics leading to increasing demand for jewellery in the country.  

 

Some of the key challenges facing the retail jewellery industry are as follows:  

(a) Adapting to fast changing consumer preferences and buying patterns.  

(b) Volatility in the market prices of gold and diamonds.  

(c) Limited availability of high end retail space.  

 

OUTLOOK 

 

At the domestic level, the organised retailers are expected to fare well, mainly due to the 

ongoing structural changes together with strong macro-demographic trends. Regulatory 

changes introduced by the Government of India over last few years are likely to increase the 

preference towards branded jewellery and shift the scales in favour of organised sector at the 

cost of the un-organised sector. These changes include regulations such as introduction and 

reversal of 80:20 ruling on gold imports, introduction and reversal of abolition of gold on 

lease scheme, introduction of gold monetisation, mandatory PAN card requirement on 

transactions of above Rs.2 lakh, obligatory hallmarking, levy of GST.  

 

All these measures would shift the preference towards organized jewellers at the cost of 

unorganized jewellers. The onset of GST is only expected to hasten the shift from the 

unorganised players. According to the World Gold Council (“WGC”), India’s gold jewellery 
demand fell. We believe that the underlying theme for the jewellery demand remains robust, 

given India’s demographics and the consumer’s affinity towards gold for both wedding 
related purchases and as store of value. Similarly the diamond and light weight jewellery is 

also gaining in popularity as more women join the work force.  

 

RISKS AND CONCERNS 

 

As the Company is dealing in very high value goods / items, it is always exposed to 

operational risks. The Company therefore always ensures that its entire inventory, from raw 

material to finished goods is insured at all times, whether under transit, at showrooms or at 

the manufacturing facilities. Entire inventory is computerized and is available for tracking at 

all times. All of its showrooms have strong rooms for overnight safe custody of the inventory. 

In addition all the showrooms have CCTV vigilance and armed guards. The Company is 

exposed to price risk movements both in gold as well as its forex exposure. However, it has 

put rigorous systems and procedures in place to take care of these concerns. The Company 

has in place a comprehensive risk management framework that helps anticipate, identify and 

evaluate business risks and challenges across the Company and finding ways to mitigate the 

same. The Company has also put in place a strong team to take care of all the required 

compliances and hence mitigate any compliance risk. 
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INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 

 

The Company has an effective internal control system, which ensures that all the assets of the 

Company are safeguarded and protected against any loss from unauthorized use or 

disposition. The Internal Auditors of the Company regularly carry out review of the internal 

control systems and procedures. The internal audit reports are periodically reviewed by Audit 

Committee. The Company has also put in place adequate internal financial controls with 

reference to the financial statements commensurate with the size and nature of operations of 

the Company. Based on the assessment carried out by the management and the evaluation of 

the results of the assessment the Board of Directors are of the opinion that the Company has 

adequate Internal Financial Controls systems that are operating effectively as of March 31, 

2021. There were no instances of fraud which necessitates reporting in the financial 

statements. There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning non-

compliance with or deficiencies in financial reporting practices.  

 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 

 

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS 

notified by the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies 

(Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016. Accordingly, the financial 

statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 as prepared on such basis.  

                                                  

HUMAN RESOURCES & INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 

 

The Company believes in establishing and building a strong performance and competency 

driven culture amongst its employees with greater sense of accountability and responsibility. 

The Company has taken various steps for strengthening organizational competency through 

the involvement and development of employees as well as installing effective systems for 

improving their productivity and accountability at functional levels. The Company 

acknowledges that its principal asset is its employees. Ongoing in-house and external training 

is provided to the employees at all levels to update their knowledge and upgrade their skills 

and abilities. As on March 31, 2021, the Company had total 32 full time employees. The 

industrial relations have remained harmonious throughout the year. 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

 

The report on Corporate Governance is pursuant to Regulation 34 (3) read with Schedule V 

of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations (the “Listing 
Regulations”), 2015. The Company has complied with the applicable requirements of the 

Listing Regulations. 

 

1. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PHILOSOPHY 

 

Corporate Governance at Midas Infra Trade Limited is based on the philosophy of a business 

enterprise being a Corporate Citizen of the nation in which it operates. The Company strives 

to fulfill expectations of its primary stakeholders, i.e. its customers, its employees, its 

business associates, the communities it significantly operates in and its shareholders. The 

Company believes in not merely following the laws of the land in letter and spirit but also in 

some cases going beyond mere compliances and thereby holding out as a beacon to other 

companies. The vision of the Company: “To create elevating experiences for the people we 
touch and significantly impact the world we work in” underpins the Corporate Governance 
philosophy. The Company realizes that it must disseminate information pertaining to its 

affairs so that all stakeholders may gain a true understanding of its activities and aspirations. 

 

The Company aims at attainment of the highest levels of transparency, accountability and 

equity in its operations, thus leading to best standards of Corporate Governance. It is the 

Company’s belief that good ethics needs good business sense and our business practices are 
in keeping with this spirit maintaining high ethical standards. The Company is a signatory to 

Global Compact, which has social dimensions to the functioning of the corporate entity 

within the ecosystem. 

 

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 

As on 31st March 2021, the Company had 3 Directors, comprising 2 Non-Executive Directors 

and 1 Executive Director. 

 

The composition and category of Directors as at 31st March 2021 is as follows: 

 

Mr.  Rajnish Chopra- Managing Director 

Mr.  Bhagat Ram- Non Executive and Independent Director 

Mr. Shyam Sunder - Non Executive and Independent Director 

 

The Composition of Board as on date of report is as follows: 

 

Mr.  Rajnish Chopra - Managing Director 

Mr.  Bhagat Ram - Non Executive and Independent Director 

Mr. Shyam Sunder - Non Executive and Independent Director 

 

During the year, the Company had a proper combination of Executive and Non-Executive 

Director with one Women Independent Director until November 2020. 

 

Mrs. Madhvi Gupta, resigned from Directorship of the Company w.e.f. 01st November, 2020. 

 

The Company has not had any pecuniary relationship and transaction with any of the Non-

Executive Directors during the year under review, other than payment of sitting fees and 
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The Board meetings were held on 

 

28.05.2020, 31.07.2020, 04.09.2020, 22.09.2020, 07.10.2020, 13.11.2020, 10.12.2020, 

04.01.2021, 13.02.2021, 31.03.2020 

 

The information as required in terms of Listing Regulations, 2015 is being regularly placed 

before the Board. The Board also reviews the declaration made by the Managing Director and 

Executives of the Company regarding compliance with all laws applicable to the Company 

on a quarterly basis. 

 

The attendance of each Director at the Board of Directors meetings during the year and at the 

last Annual General Meeting, the number of Directorships and Committee memberships held 

by them in domestic public companies as at 31st March 2021 are as indicated below: 

 

 

Name of Director 

Number 

of Board 

Meeting 

attended 

during 

the year 

Whether 

attended 

last 

Annual 

General 

meeting 

No. of Directorship 

(including this 

Company) 

No. of Committee 

positions (including 

this Company) 

As 

Chairman 

As 

Director 

As 

Chairman 

As 

Member 

Mr. Rajnish 

Chopra 

10 YES 0 4 1 3 

Mr. Bhagat Ram 10 YES 0 1 3 1 

Mr. Shyam Sunder 9 NO 0 3 0 4 

 

None of the Directors are related to each other within the meaning of the term “Relative” as 
per Section 2(77) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

Number of shares and convertible instruments held by non-executive directors: 

 

Details of shares of the Company held by Non-Executive Directors as on 31st March 2021 are 

as below: 

 

Name of Director Number of Shares 

Mr. Bhagat Ram NIL 

Mr. Shyam Sundar NIL 

 

The details of familiarization programmes for Independent Directors are posted on the 

website of the Company and can be accessed at www.mitl.org.in 

 

CODE OF CONDUCT 

 

The Company’s Code of Conduct’ is applicable to all whole time Directors and by definition 
to the Managing Director and the employees of the Company; the Board has also adopted a 

Code of Conduct for Non-Executive Directors, both of which are available on the Company’s 
website. All the Board members and Senior Management of the Company have affirmed 

compliance with their respective Codes of Conduct for the Financial Year ended 31st March 

2021. A declaration to this effect, duly signed by the Managing Director is annexed hereto. 

 

3. AUDIT COMMITTEE: 

 

http://www.mitl.org.in/
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The constitution of Audit Committee is in conformation with the requirements of Section 177 

of the Companies Act, 2013 and also as per the requirements of Regulation 18 of the Listing 

Regulations. 

 

POWERS OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 

The Audit Committee shall have powers, which includes the following: 

 

a) to investigate any activity within its terms of reference; 

b) to seek information from any employee; 

c) to obtain outside legal or other professional advice; and 

d) to secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary. 

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are as under: 

 

❖ As per the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”): 
 

“The Audit Committee shall act in accordance with the terms of reference specified in 

writing by the Board which shall, inter alia, include,— •  the recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of 

auditors of the company; • review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of 

audit process; • examination of the financial statement and the auditors’ report thereon; • approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with 

related parties; • scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments; • valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary; • evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems; • Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matter. 

 

The Audit Committee may call for the comments of the auditors about internal control 

systems, the scope of audit, including the observations of the auditors and review of financial 

statement before their submission to the Board and may also discuss any related issues with 

the internal and statutory auditors and the management of the company. 

 

Establish a vigil mechanism for directors and employees to report genuine concerns in such 

manner as may be prescribed.” 

 

❖ As per Part C Schedule II of the Listing Regulations the role of the Audit Committee 

shall include the following: 

 • oversight of the listed entity’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its 

financial information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and 

credible; • recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors 

of the listed entity; • approval of payment to statutory auditors for any of the services rendered by the 

statutory auditors; • reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor’s report 
thereon before submission to the board for approval, with particular reference to: 

➢ matters required to be included in the director’s responsibility statement to be 

included in the board’s report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 

134 of the Companies Act, 2013; 

➢ changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same; 
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➢ major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by 

management; 

➢ significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit 

findings; 

➢ compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial 

statements; 

➢ disclosure of any related party transactions; 

➢ modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report; 

 • reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission 

to the board for approval; • reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses/ application of funds raised 

through an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of 

funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document / prospectus / 

notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilisation of 

proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the 

board to take up steps in this matter; • reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s independence and performance, and 

effectiveness of audit process; • approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the listed entity with 

related parties; • scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments; • valuation of undertakings or assets of the listed entity, wherever it is necessary; • evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems; • reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, 

adequacy of the internal control systems; • reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the 

internal audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the 

department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit; • discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on; •  reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into 

matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control 

systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the board; • discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and 

scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern; • to look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, 

debenture holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and 

creditors; • to review the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism; • approval of appointment of chief financial officer after assessing the qualifications, 

experience and background, etc. of the candidate; • carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the audit 

committee; • oversee the statement of half yearly dealings by Directors/Officers/Designated 

Employees and their dependents. 

 

The Audit Committee shall mandatorily review the following information: 

 • management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations; •  statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the audit 

committee), submitted by management; • management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory 

auditors; • internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses;  
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• the appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chief internal auditor shall 

be subject to review by the audit committee •  statement of deviations: • Quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring agency, if 

applicable, submitted to stock exchange(s) in terms of Regulation 32(1). • Annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer 

document/prospectus/notice in terms of Regulation 32(7). • Additionally, the Audit Committee of the Board will also: Oversee financial reporting 

controls and process for material subsidiaries Oversee compliance with legal and 

regulatory requirements including the Company’s Code of Conduct and its material 
subsidiaries. 

 

As at the year-end, the Audit Committee of the Board comprised of three members, 2 of them 

being Independent Directors. All members are financially literate and have relevant finance 

and / or audit exposure. Mr. Shyam Sunder has business management expertise. 

 

The Audit Committee met Six times during the Financial Year 2020-21. Audit Committee 

meetings were held on 30.06.2020, 31.07.2020, 20.09.2020, 04.10.2020, 05.12.2020, 

23.03.2020. 

 

The quorum as required under Regulation 18(2) of the Listing Regulations was maintained at 

all the meetings. The names of the Directors who are members of the Audit Committee and 

their attendance at Audit Committee meetings are given below: 

 

Name of Director and category Number meeting attended 

 

Mr. Bhagat Ram (Non-Executive and 

Independent) 

6 

Mr. Rajnish Chopra (Executive Director) 6 

Mr. Shyam Sundar (Non-Executive and 

Independent) 

6 

 

4. NOMINAT ION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

 

The constitution of Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“Committee”) is in 
conformation with the requirements of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and also as 

per the requirements of Regulation 19 of the Listing Regulations. The broad terms of 

reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are as under: 

 • To recommend to the Board of Directors the selection and appointment or 

reappointment of Independent Directors (“IDs”) in the Board and its committees 
which shall include “Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, 
positive attributes and independence of a director” • Devise a policy on Board diversity • Recommend to the Board appointment of Key Managerial Personnel (“KMP” as 
defined by the Companies Act, 2013) and executive team members of the Company 

as defined by the Committee • Support the Board and IDs in evaluation of the performance of the Board, its 

committees and individual directors which shall include “Formulation of criteria for 
evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board.” • Additionally, the Committee may also oversee the performance review process of the 

KMP and the executive team of the Company. It shall recommend to the Board the 

remuneration policy for directors, executive team/ KMP as well as the rest of the 

employees. 
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• Recommend to the Board the remuneration payable to directors and executive team/ 

KMP of the Company on an annual basis, oversee familiarization programmes for 

directors, oversee the HR philosophy, HR and People strategy and HR practices 

including those for leadership development, rewards and recognition, talent 

management and succession planning (specifically for Board, KMP and executive 

team). • Provide guidelines for remuneration of directors on material subsidiaries, the 

Committee shall recommend to its Board how the Company will vote on resolutions 

for appointment and remuneration of directors on the Boards of its material subsidiary 

companies. • Endeavour to play a larger role to help the Company navigate the future to guide the 

management in the areas of capability building, leadership development, succession 

planning and in general “future proofing” the Company from a leadership perspective. • Be the sounding board for the HR strategy of the Company and perform such other 

duties and responsibilities as may be consistent with the provisions of its charter. • The Committee, pursuant to the Listing Regulations, shall also review whether to 

extend or continue the term of appointment of the IDs on the basis of the report of 

performance evaluation of the IDs. 

 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee also recommends the total remuneration 

payable to Non-Executive Directors and the criteria for payment amongst the Directors. The 
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holders at any time during a financial year shall constitute a Stakeholders Relationship 

Committee. 

 

The Company has constituted the Stakeholders Relationship Committee and the terms of 

reference of the Committee are to review statutory compliance relating to all security holders, 

consider and resolve the grievances of security holders of the company including complaints 

related to transfer of securities, non-receipt of annual report/declared dividends/notices/ 

balance sheet, oversee compliances in respect of dividend payments and transfer of 

unclaimed amounts to the Investor Education and Protection Fund, oversee and review all 

matters related to the transfer of securities of the company, approve issue of duplicate 

certificates of the company, review movements in shareholding and ownership structures of 

the company, ensure setting of proper controls and oversee performance of the Registrar and 

Share Transfer Agent, recommend measures for overall improvement of the quality of 

investor services and set forth policies relating to and oversee implementation of the Code of 

Conduct for prevention of Insider Trading. 

 

The Committee met Once during the Financial Year 2020-21. The meetings were held on 

30.06.2020 

 

The members of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee were as follows: 

 

1. Bhagat Ram 

2. Shyam Sundar  

3. Rajnish Chopra 

 

Number of complaints from shareholders during the year ended 31st March, 2021 

 

Complaints outstanding as on 1st April 2021 Nil 

Complaints received during the year ended 31st March 2021 Nil 

Complaints resolved during the year ended 31st March 2021 Nil 

Complaints not solved to the satisfaction of shareholders 

during the year ended 31st March, 2020 

Nil 

Complaints pending as on 31st March 2020  Nil 

 

7. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS 

 

Particulars of the past three Annual General Meetings 

 

a)  Location, date and time of Annual General Meetings held during the last 3 years: 

 

 

Year Location Date Time 

 

2019-20 2633-2634, Bank Street, Karol 

Bagh, New Delhi-110005 

30.01.2021 04:00 PM 

2018-19 2633-2634, Bank Street, Karol 

Bagh, New Delhi-110005 

28.09.2019 04:00 PM 

2017-18 2633-2634, Bank Street, Karol 

Bagh, New Delhi-110005 

29.09.2018 04:00 PM 

 

b) No Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of the shareholders was held during the financial 

year 2020-21. 
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c) No Postal Ballot was conducted during the financial year 2020-21. 

 

d) As of the date of the Report, no special resolutions are proposed to be conducted 

through postal ballot. 

 

e) Special Resolutions passed in previous three Annual General Meetings: 

 

At the Annual General Meeting held on 30th January 2021, no special resolutions was 

spassed. At the Annual General Meeting held on 29th September 2019, there were two 

special resolutions has been passed. At the Annual General Meeting held on 30th September 

2018 seven special resolutions were passed.  

 

Procedure for Postal Ballot: 

 

In compliance with Schedule V Part C of the Listing Regulations and Section 108, 110 and 

other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the related rules, the 

Company provides electronic voting facility to all its members, to enable them to cast their 

votes electronically. The Company engages the services of NSDL for the purpose of 

providing e-voting facility to all its members. The members have the option to vote either by 

physical ballot or e-voting. The Company dispatches the postal ballot notices and forms along 

with postage prepaid business reply envelopes to its members whose names appear on 

register of members / list of beneficiaries as on a cut-off date. The postal ballot notice is sent 

to members in electronic form to the e-mail addresses registered with their depository 

participant (in case of electronic shareholding) / the Company’s registrar and share transfer 
agents (in case of physical shareholding). The Company also publishes a notice in the 

newspaper declaring the details of completion of dispatch and other requirements as 

mandated under the Act and applicable Rules. Voting rights are reckoned on the paid-up 

value of the shares registered in the names of the members as on the cut-off date. Members 

desiring to exercise their votes by physical ballot forms are requested to return the forms duly 

completed and signed, to the scrutinizer on or before the close of voting period. Members 

desiring to exercise their vote by electronic mode are requested to vote before close of 

business hours on the last date of e-voting. 

 

The scrutinizer submits his report to the Chairman, after the completion of scrutiny, and the 

consolidated results of the voting by postal ballot are then announced by the Chairman / 

authorised officer. The results are also displayed on the website of the Company, 

www.associatedfinlease.com besides being communicated to the stock exchanges, depository 

and registrar and share transfer agent. The date of declaration of the results by the Company 

is deemed to be the date of passing of the resolutions. 

 

8. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION 

 

Whether half-yearly reports are sent to each household of shareholders? No, the financial 

results are published in the Newspapers, as required under the Listing Regulations. 

 

Website, where results are displayed The results are displayed on www.mitl.org.in 

Website for investor complaints The Company has created an ID 

midasinfratrade@gmail.com for this purpose. 

SEBI Complaints Redress System 

(SCORES): The investor complaints are 

processed in a centralized web based 

complaints redress system. The salient 

features of this system are: Centralised 

database of all complaints, online upload of 

Action Taken Reports (ATRs) by the 

http://www.mitl.org.in/
mailto:midasinfratrade@gmail.com
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concerned companies and online viewing by 

investors of actions taken on the complaint 

and its current status. 

 Presentations to institutional investors or 

analysts 

 Presentations made during the year to 

institutional investors are displayed on 

www.mitl.org.in 

Newspapers in which results are normally 

published 

 

1st Quarter English- The Pioneer 

Hindi- Pioneer 

2nd Quarter English- Business Standard 

Hindi- Business Standard 

3rd Quarter English- Business Standard 

Hindi- Business Standard 

4th Quarter English- Financial Express 

Hindi- Jansatta 

 

9. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATAION 

 

AGM: Date, time and venue Thursday, September 30, 2021, 04:00 P.M 

2633-2634, Bank Street, Karol Bagh, New 

Delhi-110005 

Financial Year 1st April, 2020 to 31st March, 2021 

Book Closure Date 22nd September, 2021 to 29th September, 2021 

(both days inclusive) 

Registered Office 301, 2633-2634, Bank Street, Karol Bagh, 

New Delhi- 110005 

Listing of Equity Shares on Stock Exchanges BSE Limited, Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, 

Dalal Street, Mumbai-400001 

Share Registrar and Transfer Agents Skyline Financial Services Pvt. Ltd.       

D-153A 1ST Floor, Okhla Industrial Area 

Phase – 1, New Delhi – 110020,  

Phone No.:011-26812682 

Company Secretary & Contact Address Praveen Kumar 

301, 2633-2634, Bank Street, Karol Bagh, 

New Delhi- 110005, Phone No. 011-

42633934,  

Email: midasinfratrade@gmail.com 

 

SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM 

 

Transfer of shares in physical form has been delegated by the Board to certain officials of the 

Registrars, to facilitate speedy service to the shareholders. Shares sent for transfer in physical 

form are registered by the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents within 30 days of receipt of 

the documents, if found in order. Shares under objection are returned within two weeks. All 

requests for dematerialization of shares are processed, if found in order and confirmation is 

given to the respective depositories i.e. National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and 

Central Depository Services Limited (CDSL) within 15 days. 
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STOCK CODE 

Equity Shares - Physical form -    BSE Ltd (BSE): 531192 

  

Equity Shares - Demat form -    NSDL / CDSL:  INE290M01022 

   

The Aggregate Non-promoter / Public Shareholding of the Company as at 31st March 2021 is 

as shown below:  

Number of Shares:  11,97,91,211    

Percentage to total holding: 98.19 

 

DISTRIBUTION OF SHARES ACCORDING TO SIZE, CLASS AND CATEGORIES  

OF SHAREHOLDERS AS ON 31st MARCH, 2021 

 

No. of Equity 

Shares Held 

Number of 

Shareholders 

Percentage No. of Shares Percentage 

    01-5000 355 15.16         374860 0.03 

5001-10,000 228 9.74     22143200 1.82 

10,001-20,000 135 5.77       2549270 0.21 

20,001-30,000 689 29.43     20626060 1.69 

30,001-40,000 133 5.68       5298690 0.43 

40,001-50,000 202 8.63     10069380 0.83 

50,001-1,00,000 340 14.52     25213290 2.07 

1,00,000 and above 259 11.06 1153654130 94.56 

Total 2341 100.00 1220000000 100.00 

 

CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDING AS ON 31st MARCH, 2021 

 

Category of Shareholders Number of 

Shareholders 

Number of 

Equity Shares 

% of Shares 

A Promoter & Promoter Group 24 2208789 1.81 

B Public Shareholding    

1 Institutions    

a Financial Institutions & Banks 1 587000 0.48 

b Foreign Portfolio & Foreign 

Institutional Investors 

0 0 0 

Sub-Total B(1) 1 587000 0.48 

2 Non-Institutions    

a Bodies Corporate 32 9217907 7.55 

b Individuals  2219 101377713 83.08 

c HUF 29 8386636 6.87 

d Non Resident Indians 17 220600 0.18 

e Clearing Members, NBFC & Trusts 4 1355 0.0011 

Sub-Total B(2) 2301 11,92,04,211 97.71 

Total Public Shareholding 

B=B(1)+B(2) 

2302 11,97,91,211 98.19 

Grand Total (A+B) 2326 12,20,00,000 100 

 

DEMATERIALISATION OF SHARES AND LIQUIDITY 

 

As on 31st March 2021, 90.34% of the Company’s Equity Capital was held in dematerialised 

form with NSDL and CDSL. Trading in equity shares of the Company is permitted only in 

dematerialised form with effect from, as per the notification issued by the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (SEBI). 

 



59 

 

ADDRESSES FOR CORRESPONDENCE 

Registered office: 301, 2633-2634, Bank Street 

       Karol Bagh, New Delhi- 110005 

       Phone No. 011-42633934 

 

10. DISCLOSURES 

 

(a)  Related Party Transactions:  

During the year under review, besides the transactions reported in Note 35 forming 

part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021 in the Annual 

Report, there were no other material related party transactions of the Company with 

its Promoters, Directors or the management or their relatives and subsidiaries, 

associate company and joint ventures. These transactions do not have any potential 

conflict with the interest of the Company at large. All related party transactions are 

placed before the Audit Committee of the Board periodically and placed for Board’s 
information if required. Further there are no material individual transactions that are 

not in normal course of business or not on an arm’s length basis. 
(b) Disclosure of Accounting Treatment:  

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with 

Indian Accounting Standard (“Ind AS”) notified under the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 

Amendment Rules, 2016 read with Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

(c) Disclosure by Senior Management:  

Senior Management has made affirmations to the Board relating to all material 

financial and commercial transactions stating that they did not have personal interest 

that could result in a conflict with the interest of the Company at large. 

(d) CEO / CFO Certification:  

The Managing Director (MD) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) have certified to the 

Board in accordance with Regulation 17(8) of the Listing Regulations pertaining to 

CEO/CFO certification for the financial year ended 31st March, 2021, which is 

annexed hereto. 

(e) Details of Non-Compliance:  

There have been no instances of non-compliance on any matter as regards the rules 

and regulations prescribed by the Stock Exchanges Securities and Exchange Board of 

India or any other statutory authority relating to capital markets during the last three 

years. No penalties or strictures have been imposed by them on the Company. 

(f) Whistle Blower Policy:  

The Company has a whistle blower mechanism wherein the employees can approach 

the Management of the Company (Audit Committee in case where the concern 

involves the Senior Management) and make protective disclosures to the Management 

about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s 
Code of Conduct. The Whistle Blower Policy is an extension of the Tata Code of 

Conduct, which requires every employee to promptly report to the management any 

actual or possible violation of the Code or an event he becomes aware of that could 

affect the business or reputation of the Company. The disclosure reported are 

addressed in the manner and within the time frames prescribed in the policy. A 

mechanism is in place whereby any employee of the Company has access to the 

Chairman of the Audit Committee to report any concerns. No person has been denied 

access to the Chairman to report any concern. Further, the said policy has been 
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disseminated within the organisation and has also been posted on the Company’s 
website. 

(g) Share Transfer Compliance and Share Capital Reconciliation:  

Pursuant to Regulation 40 (9) of the Listing Regulations, certificates on half-yearly 

basis, have been issued by a Company Secretary-in-Practice for due compliance of 

share transfer formalities by the Company. Pursuant to SEBI (Depositories and 

Participants) Regulations, 1996, certificates have also been received from a Company 

Secretary-in-Practice for timely dematerialisation of the shares of the Company and 

for conducting a share capital audit on a quarterly basis for reconciliation of the share 

capital of the Company. 

(h) Compliance of non-mandatory requirements:  

The information pertaining to compliance of non-mandatory requirements made, may 

be referred to Item No.12 below 

(i) Risk Management:  

The Risk Management of the Company is overseen by the Senior Management and 

the Board at various levels: 

 

Business / Strategic Risk:  

The Board oversees the risks which are inherent in the businesses pursued by the Company. 

The oversight is through review/ approval of business plans, projects and approvals for 

business strategy / policy. 

 

Operational Risks:  

These are being mitigated by internal policies and procedures which are updated from time to 

time to address reviewed risks. 

Financial Risks:  

These risks are addressed on an on-going basis by Treasury, Insurance and Forex Policies and 

Bullion Risk Management team. Due oversight on financial risks is exercised by the Audit 

Committee in its meetings. The Company is actively engaged in assessing and monitoring the 

risks of each of the businesses and overall for the Company as a whole. The top tier of risks 

for the Company is captured by the operating management after serious deliberations on the 

nature of the risk being a gross or a net risk and thereafter in a prioritized manner presented to 

the Board for their inputs on risk mitigation/ management efforts. 

The Board engages in the Risk Management process and has set out a review process so as to 

report to the Board the progress on the initiatives for the major risks of each of the businesses 

that the Company is into. The Risk registers of each of the Businesses gets updated on a bi-

annual basis and is placed for due discussions at Board meetings and appropriateness of the 

mitigation measures to ensure that the risks remain relevant at any point in time and 

corresponding mitigation measures are optimized. 

 

Disclosure on website:  

 

The Policy on Related Party Transactions is posted on the website of the Company and can 

be accessed at www.mitl.org.in 

 

Disclosure of commodity price risks and commodity hedging activities:  

 

The Company uses derivative financial instruments to manage risks associated with gold 

price fluctuations relating to certain highly probable forecasted transactions, foreign currency 

http://www.mitl.org.in/
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fluctuations relating to certain firm commitments. The Company has designated derivative 

financial instruments taken for gold price fluctuations as ‘cash flow’ hedges relating to highly 
probable forecasted transactions. 

 

The Company designates non derivative financial liabilities as hedging instruments to 

mitigate the risk of change in fair value of hedged item due to movement in interest rates, 

foreign exchange rates and commodity prices. The Company has designated the trade 

payables pertaining to gold taken on loan from banks (‘unfixed gold’) as a fair value hedge to 

the corresponding gold inventory purchased on loan. 

 

11. NON -COMPIANCE OF ANY REQUIREMENT OF CORPORATE 

GOVERNANCE REPORT 

There have been no instances of non-compliance of any requirement of the Corporate 

Governance Report as prescribed by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 

12. DISCLOSURE OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE LISTING REGULAT IONS 

 

The Company has complied with the Corporate Governance requirements specified in 

Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of Sub-Regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the 

Listing Regulations. 
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Certification as per 

Regulation 17 (8) of the Listing Regulations 

 

To,  

 

The Board of Directors, 

Midas Infra Trade Limited 

301, 2633-2634, Bank Street 

Karol Bagh, New Delhi- 110005 

 

Certification to the Board Pursuant to Regulation 17 (8) of the Listing Regulations 

 

I, Rajnsh Chopra, Managing Director, hereby certify that in respect of the Financial Year 

ended on March 31, 2021 

 

1. I have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statements for the year, and 

that to the best of our knowledge and belief : 

 

a) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material 

fact or contain statements that might be misleading; 

b) these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are 
in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations; 

 

2. there are, to the best of my knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the 

Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s 
Code of Conduct; 

 

3. I accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial 

reporting and I have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the 

Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and the 

Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of internal control, if any, of 

which we are aware and the steps taken or proposed to be taken to rectify the same; 

 

4. I have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committee : - 

a) significant changes, if any, in internal control over financial reporting during the year; 

b) significant changes, if any, in accounting policies during the year and the same have 

been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and 

c) instances of significant fraud, if any, wherein there has been involvement of 

management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal 
control system over financial reporting. 

 

 

New Delhi         Rajnish Chopra 

August 14, 2021                                      Managing Director 
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DECLARATION BY THE MANAGING DIRECTOR UNDER REGULAT ION 17 (5) OF THE 

LISTING REGULAT IONS REGARDING ADHERENCE TO THE CODE OF CONDUCT 

 

 

In accordance with Regulation 17 (5) of the Listing Regulations, I hereby confirm that, all the 

Directors and the Senior Management personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance 

to their respective Codes of Conduct, as applicable to them for the Financial Year ended 

March 31, 2021. 

           

 

 

 

            For Midas Infra Trade Limited 

    

 

 

 

Place: New Delhi                                                                                         Rajnish Chopra 

Date: August 14, 2021                          Managing Director 
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CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE CONDITIONS OF 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE UNDER LISTING REGULATIONS, 2015 

 

 

To, 

The Members 

Midas Infra Trade Limited 

L65910DL1994PLC062379 

301, 2633-2634, Bank Street 

Karol Bagh, New Delhi-110005 

 

 

We have examined all relevant records of Midas Infra Trade Limited (the Company) for the 

purpose of certifying all the conditions of the Corporate Governance under SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for the financial year ended 

31st March, 2021. We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of 

our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of certification. 

• In our opinion and to the best of information and according to the explanations given 

to us and representations made by the Management, we state that the Company has 

not complied the provision of Corporate Governance as specified in Regulations 17, 

19, 25 and 27, and paragraphs C  D  and of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations. 

 

• For details observation kindly refer the  Secretarial Auditor Report as issued by us. 

The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the 

management. Our examination was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof. 

This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 

efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 

Company. 

 

For M/S KMPM & CO 

(Company Secretaries) 

 

 

 

 

 

Manish Kumar Singh                             

FRN: P2020DE081800             Place: New Delhi 

COP No : 18611                        

M.No.:  50969 
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REMUNERATION POLICY 

 

Remuneration policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees The 

philosophy for remuneration of directors, Key Managerial Personnel (“KMP”) and all other 
employees of Midas Infra Trade Limited (“company”) is based on the commitment of 
fostering a culture of leadership with trust. The remuneration policy is aligned to this 

philosophy. 

 

This remuneration policy has been prepared pursuant to the provisions of Section 178(3) of 

the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and as per provisions of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. 

In case of any inconsistency between the provisions of law and this remuneration policy, the 

provisions of the law shall prevail and the company shall abide by the applicable law. While 

formulating this policy, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) has 
considered the factors laid down under Section 178(4) of the Act, which are as under: 

 

a) the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, 

retain and motivate directors of the quality required to run the company successfully 

b) relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate 

performance benchmarks; and 

c) remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior management involves 

a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance 

objectives appropriate to the working of the company and its goals” 

 

Key principles governing this remuneration policy are as follows: 

 

➢ Remuneration for independent directors and non-independent non-executive directors 

❖ Independent directors (“ID”) and non-independent non-executive directors (“NED”) 
may be paid sitting fees (for attending the meetings of the Board and of committees of 

which they may be members) and commission within regulatory limits. 

❖ Within the parameters prescribed by law, the payment of sitting fees and commission 

will be recommended by the NRC and approved by the Board. 

❖ Overall remuneration (sitting fees and commission) should be reasonable and sufficient 

to attract, retain and motivate directors aligned to the requirements of the company 

(taking into consideration the challenges faced by the company and its future growth 

imperatives). 

❖ Overall remuneration should be reflective of size of the company, complexity of the 

sector/ industry/ company’s operations and the company’s capacity to pay the 
remuneration. 

❖ Overall remuneration practices should be consistent with recognized best practices. 

❖ Quantum of sitting fees may be subject to review on a periodic basis, as required. 

❖ The aggregate commission payable to all the NEDs and IDs will be recommended by 

the NRC to the Board based on company performance, profits, return to investors, 

shareholder value creation and any other significant qualitative parameters as may be 

decided by the Board. 

❖ The NRC will recommend to the Board the quantum of commission for each director 

based upon the outcome of the evaluation process which is driven by various factors 

including attendance and time spent in the Board and committee meetings, individual 

contributions at the meetings and contributions made by directors other than in 

meetings. 

❖ In addition to the sitting fees and commission, the company may pay to any director 

such fair and reasonable expenditure, as may have been incurred by the director while 

performing his/ her role as a director of the company. This could include reasonable 
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expenditure incurred by the director for attending Board/ Board committee meetings, 

general meetings, court convened meetings, meetings with shareholders/ creditors/ 

management, site visits, induction and training (organized by the company for 

directors) and in obtaining professional advice from independent advisors in the 

furtherance of his/ her duties as a director. 

 

➢ Remuneration for managing director (“MD”)/ executive directors (“ED”)/ KMP/ rest of 
the employees 

 

❖ The extent of overall remuneration should be sufficient to attract and retain talented 

and qualified individuals suitable for every role. Hence remuneration should be Market 

competitive (market for every role is defined as companies from which the company 

attracts talent or companies to which the company loses talent) 

❖ Driven by the role played by the individual, 

❖ Reflective of size of the company, complexity of the sector/ industry/ company’s 
operations and the company’s capacity to pay, 

❖ Consistent with recognized best practices and 

❖ Aligned to any regulatory requirements. 

 

➢ In terms of remuneration mix or composition, 

 

❖ The remuneration mix for the MD/ EDs is as per the contract approved by the 

shareholders. In case of any change, the same would require the approval of the 

shareholders. 

❖ Basic/ fixed salary is provided to all employees to ensure that there is a steady income 

in line with their skills and experience. 

❖ In addition to the basic/ fixed salary, the company provides employees with certain 

perquisites, allowances and benefits to enable a certain level of lifestyle and to offer 

scope for savings and tax optimization, where possible. The company also provides all 

employees with a social security net (subject to limits) by covering medical expenses 

and hospitalization through re-imbursements or insurance cover and accidental death 

and dismemberment through personal accident insurance. 

❖ The company provides retirement benefits as applicable. 

❖ In addition to the basic/ fixed salary, benefits, perquisites and allowances as provided 

above, the company provides MD/ EDs such remuneration by way of commission, 

calculated with reference to the net profits of the company in a particular financial 

year, as may be determined by the Board, subject to the overall ceilings stipulated in 

Section197 of the Act. The specific amount payable to the MD/ EDs would be based 

on performance as evaluated by the Board or the NRC and approved by the Board. 

❖ In addition to the basic/ fixed salary, benefits, perquisites and allowances as provided 

above, the company provides MD/ EDs such remuneration by way of an annual 

incentive remuneration/performance linked bonus subject to the achievement of certain 

performance criteria and such other parameters as may be considered appropriate from 

time to time by the Board.  

❖ An indicative list of factors that may be considered for determination of the extent of 

this component are: 

 

o Company performance on certain defined qualitative and quantitative 

parameters as maybe decided by the Board from time to time, 

o Industry benchmarks of remuneration, 

 

o Performance of the individual. 
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❖ The company provides the rest of the employees a performance linked bonus. The 

performance linked bonus would be driven by the outcome of the performance 

appraisal process and the performance of the company. 

 

➢ Remuneration payable to Director for services rendered in other capacity 

 

❖ The remuneration payable to the Directors shall be inclusive of any remuneration payable 

for services rendered by such director in any other capacity unless: 

 

a) The services rendered are of a professional nature; and 

 

b) The NRC is of the opinion that the director possesses requisite qualification for the 

practice of the profession. 

 

➢ Policy implementation 

 

The NRC is responsible for recommending the remuneration policy to the Board. The Board 

is responsible for approving and overseeing implementation of the remuneration policy 
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 INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  

TO THE MEMBERS OF MIDAS INFRA TRADE LIMITED 

Report on the IND AS Financial Statements  

Qualified Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of MIDAS INFRA TRADE 

LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2021, the 

Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in 

Equity for the year then ended on that date including a summary of significant accounting 

policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as ‘financial statements’). 
 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 

us except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified opinion referred to 

in our report which could not be quantified, the aforesaid financial statements give the 

information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and 
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in 

India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March 2021, the statement of profit & 

loss for the loss, its cash flows and changes in equity for the year ended on that date. 

 

Basis for Qualified Opinion 

 

(a) The Company fails to provide sufficient appropriate evidence for the measurement of 

Financial assets and liabilities as per the requirements of Ind AS 109 “Financial 
Instruments”. In the absence of any convincing audit evidences regarding the 
measurement of the Financial Assets & Liabilities as recognized in the financial 

statements, we are unable to determine the possible effect on the financial result. 

 

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on 

Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those 

Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 

accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 

(ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 

statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have 

fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code 

of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 

provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements. 

 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 

 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the Other Information. The Other 

Information comprises the information included in the Director’s Report but does not include 

the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.  
 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the Other Information and we do not 

express any form of assurance / conclusion thereon. 

 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 

information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 

inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our 

audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  
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If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement 

of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 

regard. 

 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial 

Statements 

 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of 
the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair 

view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the 

Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India including 

the accounting standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also 

includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the 

Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds 

and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 

judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for 

ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation 

and presentation of the  financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the 

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors 

either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative 

but to do so. 

 

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting 
process. 

 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 

auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance 

but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a 

material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 

those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide 

a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 

from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 

internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order 

to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 

143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing an opinion on whether 

the Company has in place an adequate internal financial control system over 

financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 
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• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 

of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis 
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 

uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 

the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures 

are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 

evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or 

conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the 

underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 

and where applicable, related safeguards. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1 As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by 

the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the 

Act, we give in the Annexure-A, a statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3 

and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

2 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the 

best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 

Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

(c) Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive 

Income, Statement of changes in Equity and the statement of Cash Flow dealt with 

by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting 

Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st 

March 2021, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 

disqualified as on 31st March 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of 

Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to 

financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, 

refer to our separate Report in ‘’Annexure-B’’; 
(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance 

with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and 

to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. the Company has disclosed the impact, wherever necessary, of pending litigations on its 

financial position in its financial statement. 
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ii. the Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting 

standard, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including 

derivative contracts. 

iii. there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education 

and Protection Fund by the Company. 

 

 

For A P R A & ASSOCIATES LLP  

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration Number: 011078N/N500064 

 

 

 

 

ASHOK GUPTA 

DESIGNATED PARTNER 

Membership Number: 085683 

 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: JULY 03, 2021 

UDIN: 21085683AAAACY1276  
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ANNEXURE-A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS OF MIDAS INFRA TRADE LIMITED, FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2021 

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ 
section of our report of even date) 

1. a) The Company has not maintained proper records showing full particulars, 

including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets. 

b) The fixed assets have not been physically verified by the management during the 

year and we are unable to comment on the discrepancies (if any) 

c) The title deed of the Immovable property (which was purchased during the year 

2019-20) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the company. 

2. As explained to us, inventories have been physically verified during the year by the 

management. We are unable to comment on the discrepancies (if any) as the same 

were not made available to us. Valuation of inventory has been taken as provided and 

certified by the management of the Company. 

3. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not, 

granted any loans to the parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 

of the Companies Act, 2013, hence, the provisions of clause 3(iii) of the Order are not 

applicable to the Company. 

4. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 

Company has complied with provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act in respect 

of loans, investments, guarantees and securities. 

5. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 

accepted any deposits covered by the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other 

relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed there under. 

6.  Central Government has not prescribed for the Company the maintenance of cost 

records under sub Section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, and hence the 

provisions of clause 3(vi) of Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order 2016 are not 
applicable to the Company. 

7. a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 

examination of the records of the Company, the Company is generally regular in 

depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including provident 

fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, goods and services tax, duty of 
customs, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it except as mentioned below. 

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts 

payable in respect of the aforesaid dues were in arrears as at the balance sheet date for 

a period of more than six months from the date they became payable except as 

mentioned below. 

Name of the 

Statute 

Nature of the 

Dues 

Amount 

(Rs.) 

Period to 

which the 

amount 

relates 

Due Date Date 

of 

Paym

ent 

Remar

ks, if 

any 

Employee 

Provident 

Fund 

Employer and 

employee share 

84,000 2019-20 15.10.2019 - - 
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Employee 

Provident 

Fund 

Employer and 

employee share 

81,364 2019-20 15.11.2019   

Employee 

Provident 

Fund 

Employer and 

employee share 

68,311 2019-20 15.12.2019   

Employee 

Provident 

Fund 

Employer and 

employee share 

69,698 2019-20 15.01.2020   

Employee 

Provident 

Fund 

Employer and 

employee share 

68,908 2019-20 15.02.2020   

Employee 

Provident 

Fund 

Employer and 

employee share 

64,640 2019-20 15.03.2020   

Employee 

Provident 

Fund 

Employer and 

employee share 

45,264 2019-20 15.04.2020   

Employee 

state insurance 

scheme 

Employer and 

employee share 

7,024 2019-20 15.12.2019   

Employee 

state insurance 

scheme 

Employer and 

employee share 

7,147 2019-20 15.01.2020   

Employee 

state insurance 

scheme 

Employer and 

employee share 

7,323 2019-20 15.02.2020   

Employee 

state insurance 

scheme 

Employer and 

employee share 

1,358 2019-20 15.03.2020   

Employee 

state insurance 

scheme 

Employer and 

employee share 

949 2019-20 15.04.2020   

Income Tax TDS u/s 194C 3,496 2019-20 07.05.2019 - - 

Income Tax TDS u/s 194C 47,190 2019-20 07.06.2019 - - 

Income Tax TDS u/s 194C 15,594 2019-20 07.07.2019 - - 

Income Tax TDS u/s 194C 16,967 2019-20 07.08.2019 - - 

Income Tax TDS u/s 194C 5,681 2019-20 07.09.2019 - - 

Income Tax TDS u/s 194C 6,689 2019-20 07.10.2019 - - 

Income Tax TDS u/s 194C 599 2019-20 07.11.2019   

Income Tax TDS u/s 194C 585 2019-20 07.12.2019   



74 

 

Income Tax TDS u/s 194C 8,527 2019-20 07.01.2020   

Income Tax TDS u/s 194C 16,750 2019-20 07.02.2020   

Income Tax TDS u/s 194C 35,339 2019-20 07.03.2020   

Income Tax TDS u/s 194C 7,820 2019-20 30.04.2020   

Income Tax TDS u/s 194I 2,18,484 2019-20 07.05.2019 - - 

Income Tax TDS u/s 194I 2,18,484 2019-20 07.06.2019 - - 

Income Tax TDS u/s 194I 2,18,484 2019-20 07.07.2019 - - 

Income Tax TDS u/s 194I 63,384 2019-20 07.08.2019 - - 

Income Tax TDS u/s 194I 55,884 2019-20 07.09.2019 - - 

Income Tax TDS u/s 194I 55,884 2019-20 07.10.2019 - - 

Income Tax TDS u/s 194I 60,000 2019-20 07.11.2019   

Income Tax TDS u/s 194I 37,500 2019-20 07.12.2019   

Income Tax TDS u/s 194I 75,500 2019-20 07.01.2020   

Income Tax TDS u/s 194I 75,500 2019-20 07.02.2020   

Income Tax TDS u/s 194I 56,500 2019-20 07.03.2020   

Income Tax TDS u/s 194I 56,500 2019-20 30.04.2020   

Income Tax TDS u/s 194B 27,000 2019-20 07.05.2019 - - 

Income Tax TDS u/s 194B 27,000 2019-20 07.06.2019 - - 

Income Tax TDS u/s 194B 27,000 2019-20 07.07.2019 - - 

Income Tax TDS u/s 194B 27,000 2019-20 07.08.2019 - - 

Income Tax TDS u/s 194B 27,000 2019-20 07.09.2019 - - 

Income Tax TDS u/s 194B 27,000 2019-20 07.10.2019 - - 

Income Tax TDS u/s 194B 27,000 2019-20 07.11.2019   

Income Tax TDS u/s 194B 27,000 2019-20 07.12.2019   

Income Tax TDS u/s 194B 18,000 2019-20 07.01.2020   

Income Tax TDS u/s 194B 36,000 2019-20 07.02.2020   

Income Tax TDS u/s 194B 27,000 2019-20 07.03.2020   

Income Tax TDS u/s 194B 27,000 2019-20 30.04.2020   

Income Tax TDS u/s 194J 56,750 2019-20 07.05.2019   

Income Tax TDS u/s 194J 71,400 2019-20 07.06.2019   

Income Tax TDS u/s 194J 58,200 2019-20 07.07.2019   
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Income Tax TDS u/s 194J 20,175 2019-20 07.08.2019   

Income Tax TDS u/s 194J 72,100 2019-20 07.09.2019   

Income Tax TDS u/s 194J 81,600 2019-20 07.10.2019   

Income Tax TDS u/s 194J 12,500 2019-20 07.11.2019   

Income Tax TDS u/s 194J 18,900 2019-20 07.12.2019   

Income Tax TDS u/s 194J 12,500 2019-20 07.01.2020   

Income Tax TDS u/s 194J 19,500 2019-20 07.02.2020   

Income Tax TDS u/s 194J 30,000 2019-20 07.03.2020   

Income Tax TDS u/s 194J 57,456 2019-20 30.04.2020   

Income Tax TDS u/s 194C 4,778 2020-21 07.05.2020   

Income Tax TDS u/s 194C 765 2020-21 07.07.2020   

Income Tax TDS u/s 194C 8,652 2020-21 07.10.2020   

Income Tax TDS u/s 194J 32,500 2020-21 07.05.2020   

Income Tax TDS u/s 194J 15,500 2020-21 07.06.2020   

Income Tax TDS u/s 194J 7,827 2020-21 07.07.2020   

Income Tax TDS u/s 194J 1,875 2020-21 07.08.2020   

Income Tax TDS u/s 194J 1,875 2020-21 07.09.2020   

Income Tax TDS u/s 194J 1,875 2020-21 07.10.2020   

Income Tax TDS u/s 194I 3,750 2020-21 07.07.2020   

Income Tax TDS u/s 194I 3,750 2020-21 07.08.2020   

Income Tax TDS u/s 194I 3,750 2020-21 07.09.2020   

Income Tax TDS u/s 194I 3,750 2020-21 07.10.2020   

  

b) According to the records of the Company, there are no dues outstanding of income tax, 

sales tax (including value added tax and central sales tax), service tax, goods and services 

tax, duty of customs or duty of excise on account of any dispute. 

8. Based on our audit procedures, in our opinion and according to the information and 

explanations given by the management, the Company is regular in repayment of dues 

to financial institutions or banks. 

9. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 

raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt 

instruments). 
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10. Based upon the audit procedures and according to the information and explanations 

given by the management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the 

Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course 

of our audit. 

11. Based on the information provided, the managerial remuneration has not been paid or 

provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provision of 

Section 197 read with schedule 5 to the Companies Act, 2013. 

12. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 

Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is 

not applicable. 

13. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our 

examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in 

compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and 

the details of such transactions have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements 

as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

14. According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall 

examination of the balance sheet, the Company has not made private placement of 

shares during the period under review. 

15. According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not 

entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. 

16. The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve 

Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the paragraph 3(xvi) of the Order is not 

applicable. 

 

For A P R A & ASSOCIATES LLP  

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration Number: 011078N/N500064 

 

 

 

ASHOK GUPTA 

DESIGNATED PARTNER 

Membership Number: 085683 

 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: 3RD JULY, 2021 

UDIN: 21085683AAAACY1276   
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ANNEXURE-B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS OF MIDAS INFRA TRADE LIMITED, FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31ST MARCH, 2021 

(Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of 

the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’) as referred to in paragraph 2(f) of ‘Report on Other 
Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section.) 
We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of 

MIDAS INFRA TRADE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31st March, 2021 in conjunction 

with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that 

date.  

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 

financial controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria 

established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in 

the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 

“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).  
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 

internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 

efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 

completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 

information, as required under the Act. 

Auditors’ Responsibility  
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with 

reference to financial statements based on our audit conducted in accordance with the 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 

‘’Guidance Note’’) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be 
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 

financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued 

by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note 

require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 

reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to 

financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively 

in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 

internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating 

effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 

included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial 

statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 

design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 

procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks 
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with 
reference to financial statements. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements 

A Company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process 

designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and 

the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
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accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control with reference to 

financial statements includes those policies and procedures that: 

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 

reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;  

(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 

preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 

principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in 

accordance with authorizations of the management and directors of the Company; and  

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 

acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on 

the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial 

Statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial 

statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of 

controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 

projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial 

statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with 

reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, 

or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Qualified Opinion   

 

In our opinion, the Company does not have internal financial controls with reference to 

financial statements, which were operating effectively as at 31st March, 2021, based on the 

internal control with reference to financial statements criteria considering the essential 

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 

controls with reference to financial statements issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants 

of India. 

For A P R A & ASSOCIATES LLP  

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration Number: 011078N/N500064 

 

 

 

 

ASHOK GUPTA 

DESIGNATED PARTNER 

Membership Number: 085683 

 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: JULY 03, 2021 

UDIN: 21085683AAAACY1276 
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MIDAS INFRA TRADE LIMITED  

 CIN:-L65910DL1994PLC062379  

 301, 2633-34 BANK STREET KAROL BAGH, NEW DELHI-110005  

       
 

 Balance Sheet As at 31st March, 2021  

 Particulars   Note No.  As at March 

31, 2021 (Amount 

INR in Lacs) 

As at March 31, 

2020 (Amount INR in 

Lacs) 

 ASSETS  
      

 Non-current assets        

 (a) Property, Plant and Equipment  
  2                                                       

 971.78  1053.07  

  (b) Investments    3                                         200.00 200.00  

   (c) Loans   4                                                      615.65                               1039.76 

Total A    1787.43  2292.84 

 Current assets        

 (a) Inventories    5                                                       1129.09  5007.13  

 (b) Financial Assets        

 (i)  Trade receivables    6                                                     360.72   549.08 

 (ii) Cash and cash equivalents    7                                                 1.89  141.61  

(c) Current Tax Assets   8     41.61 40.93 

 (d) Other current assets    9                                                      3.26  94.13  

 Total B     1536.59  5832.91  

 Total Assets (A+B)     3324.03   8125.76 

  

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  
      

 Equity        

 Equity share capital   10A                                             1,220.00   1,220.00  

 Other Equity   10B     326.80   474.68  

    1546.80   1694.68  

 Liabilities        

 Non-current Liabilities        

 (a) Financial liabilities        

 (i)  Borrowings   11  1,367.41      1560.33 

 (b)  Deferred tax liabilities (Net)        24.15  16.05    

 Total A     1391.56  1576.39  

  

Current Liabilities        

(a) Financial liabilities         

 (i) Trade payables  12   97.37 4275.99 

 (ii) Other financial liabilities  13      3.76 5.86 

(b) Other current liabilities  14  194.52 482.82 

(c) Provisions  18    90.00 90.00 

 Total B  

 

385.66  4854.68 

 Total equity and liabilities (A+B)    3324.03 8125.76 

See accompanying note nos. 1 to 35  forming part of the financial statements     
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In terms of our report attached of the 

even date  

 

                                              For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of      

Midas Infra Trade Limited  

 FOR A P R A & ASSOCIATES 

LLP  

  
  

 (CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS)  
 

   

 Firm Registration No. 

011078N/N500064  

 

 

  

   RAJNISH CHOPRA    BHAGAT RAM  

  (Managing Director)    (Director)  

   (DIN 07676838 )    (DIN 08198815)  

  
 

   

 ASHOK GUPTA      

 DESIGNATED PARTNER     

MEMBERSHIP NO. - 085683 MURARI LAL  PRAVEEN KUMAR  

  (Chief Financial Officer)   (Company Secretary)  

 (PAN: ACKPL0892K)  (ACS-32631)  

PLACE :- NEW DELHI       

DATE : JULY03,2021    
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 Statement of Profit & Loss Account for the year ended 31st March, 2021 

  

 Particulars  Note  No.   For the Year 

Ended 

March 31, 

2021 (Amount 

INR in Lacs)  

 For the Year 

Ended 

March 31, 2020 

(Amount INR in 

Lacs)  

 I   Revenue from operations (gross)    16   15,844.21   4,030.69  

 II   Other income   17  14.00   33.87  

 III   Total income    A  15,858.21   4,064.56  

   Expenses:  
  

    

 IV  (a)    Cost of material consumed  18   1617.67   1939.64  

 V  (b)    Purchase of stock-in-trade  19   1370.65   9837.37  

 VI  
(c)    Changes in inventories of finished 

goods and stock-in-trade 

 20   4146.56   (1010.79) 

 VII  (d)    Employee benefits expense  21   42.04   281.59  

 VIII  (e)    Finance costs  22   .72  1.03  

 IX  (f)    Depreciation and amortisation expense   86.29  75.20  

 X  (g)   Other expenses  23   2,11,78,076   590.21  

          

 XI   Total expenses                      B 7475.73   11714.28 

 XII.  
 Profit/(loss) before exceptional item and 

tax (III-XI)    

(139.77)   51.28  

 XIII   Exceptional item    -                                                            -  

 XIV   Profit/(loss) before tax)                    C (139.77)   51.28  

 XV   Tax-expense/(Credit):   D     

  
 -Current tax  

  

                            

15.00 

  
 -Deferred tax Asset/(Liability)  

  
                 8.10        

                              

13 

  
 -Income Tax Paid  

  
                                

- 

-  

 XVI  Profit/(loss) for the year  
                 E 

(147.88)   36.14  

 

XVII  

Other Comprehensive income/(loss)  
                 F 

                                    

-    
                             -    

  
 Item that will not be subsequently 

reclassified to profit or loss    
  

  

  
 (a) Re-measurement gains/(losses) on 

defined benefit obligations    

                                    

-    

 -    

  
 (b) Income tax effect  

  

                                    

-    

  

  
 Item that may be subsequently 

reclassified to profit or loss:    
  

  

  
 (a) Cash flow hedges  

  

                                    

-    

 -    

  
 (b) Income tax effect  

  

                                    

-    

 -    

 

XVIII  

 Total Other Comprehensive income/(loss) 

for the year    

(147.88)   36.14  

 XIX      (147.88)   36.14  
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Total Comprehensive income/(loss) for 

the year  

 XX  

 Earnings/(loss) per equity share (of Rs. 1/- 

each) 

Basic and Diluted ( in Rs. per share) In INR 

  

  ( 0.12)   0.03  

 See accompanying note nos. 1 to 35  forming part of the financial statements  

  
   

  

     

 In terms of our report attached of the even date        

 FOR A P R A & ASSOCIATES LLP  
  

  

 (CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS)  
 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Midas Infra 

Trade Limited  

 Firm Registration No. 011078N/N500064  
  

  

  
 

 

 
  

  
 

 

 
  

  
 

 

 
  

  
 

    

ASHOK GUPTA   RAJNISH CHOPRA    BHAGAT RAM  

 Designated Partner   (Managing Director)    (Director)  

 (M. No. 085683)  (DIN 07676838 )    (DIN 08198815)  

     

       

    

 
MURARI LAL 

 PRAVEEN 

KUMAR  

 PLACE :- NEW DELHI  

(Chief Financial 

Officer) 
 

(Company 

Secretary)  

 DATE : 03.07.2021  (PAN:ACKPL0892K)  (ACS-32631)  
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 Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March, 2021 

  

 Particulars   For the Year Ended  

March 31, 2021 

(Amount INR in 

Lacs)  

 For the Year 

Ended  

March 31, 2020              

(Amount INR in 

Lacs)  

 A.   Cash flow from operating activities  

Profit/(loss) before tax 

Adjusted for :  

 (1,39.77)  51.28  

   Depreciation and amortisation expense    86.29   75.20  

   Leasehold prepayments amortisation  - - 

   Interest income   (.095)  (14.37) 

   Finance cost    .72   1.03  

   (Profit)/loss on sale of investments  - - 

   Gain on mark to market of investments  - - 

    (Profit)/loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (net)  - - 

   Net (gain)/loss on foreign currency transactions and translation  - - 

   Provision for capital work in progress  - - 

   Deferred Government grant transferred  - - 

   Other Adjustments  - - 

  
 

- - 

   Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes   (52.85)  113.15  

   Adjusted for :  
  

   (Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables               188.36 2177.23 

   (Increase)/Decrease in inventories   3878.03 (575.91) 

   (Increase)/Decrease in Loans & Advances    424.11 (345.49) 

   (Increase)/Decrease in other assets      90.18   19.86 

   Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables  (4178.61) (570.76) 

   Increase/(Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities       (2.10)      2.57 

   Increase/(Decrease) in other liabilities  (288.30)  106.38 

    Increase/(Decrease) in provisions & deferred tax      8.10   15.11 

  
 

119.78 828.98 

   Cash generated from operations    66.93   942.13  

  

 

 Net Income taxes (paid) / refunds  

 

  8.10  

 

 15.13  

  

 Net cash from operating activities                                                        

A  

 58.82   926.99  

  
 

  
 

 B.   Cash flow from investing activities      

  

 Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipments including 

capital advances  

 (4.99)  (910.19) 

   Sale of property, plant and equipments  - - 

   Purchases of investments      

   Sale of investments  - - 

   Interest  received/Dividend received  .095  14.37  

   Bank balances not considered as cash and cash equivalents  
  

        -Deposits placed  
 

- 

        -Deposits matured  
 

- 
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   Net cash used in investing activities                                               

B  

 (4.90)  (895.82) 

 C.   Cash flow from financing activities  
  

    Proceeds from long-term borrowings   (192.92)  84.12 

   Proceeds from short term borrowings  - - 

   Repayment of long-term borrowings  - - 

   Repayment of short-term borrowings  - - 

   Interest and finance charges paid   (.72)  (1.03) 

  

 Net cash used in financing activities                                                    

C  

 (193.65)  83.09  

  
   

  
 Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents                                   

A+B+C  

 (139.72)  114.25  

  
  

 

  
 Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year  

 141.61   27.35  

   Cash and cash equivalents as at the End of the year   1.89   141.61  

  
  

  

 See accompanying note nos. 1 to 35 forming part of the financial statements  

  

 In terms of our report attached of the even date  

  

     For and on behalf of the Board of 

Directors of Midas Infra Trade Limited  

 FOR A P R A & ASSOCIATES LLP  
 

  

 (CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS)     

 Firm Registration No. 011078N/N500064     

  
 

   

  RAJNISH CHOPRA  
 BHAGAT 

RAM  

 (Managing Director)   (Director)  

 ASHOK GUPTA                                                                                                                  (DIN 07676838 )   (DIN 08198815)  

 DESIGNATED PARTNER                                                                                               

 (M. No. 085683)                                                                                                                

   

 MURARI LAL 
PRAVEEN 

KUMAR  

 PLACE :- NEW DELHI  

(Chief Financial 

Officer) 

 (Company 

Secretary)  

DATE : 03.07.2021 (PAN:ACKPL0892K) (ACS-32631)  
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Note 1: Significant accounting policies  

      

A. Corporate information 

 

Midas infra trade limited (‘The Company’) is a company domiciled in India. Midas Infra 
Trade Limited was incorporated on 26th of October, 1994 under the name and style of 

“Associated Fin lease Limited” in Delhi and is having its registered office situated at 

301, 2633-2634, Bank Street, Karol Bagh, New Delhi-110005. The Company has 

changed its name from “Associated Fin lease Limited” to “Midas Infra Trade Limited” 
and consequent upon such change fresh Certificate of Incorporation was given to the 

company on 14th day of August, 2013. The Equity Shares of the Company are listed at 

BSE Limited.  

 

The Company is engaged in the business of Manufacturing and Trading of Jewelry 

having franchise of Sunar Jewels. During the year the company also started trading of 

Bridal Garments. 

 

The functional and presentation currency of the Company is Indian Rupees (‘INR’) 
which is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company 

operates. 

 

B. Basis of Preparation of financial statements and significant accounting policies  

 

Accounting policies and methods of computation followed in the Financial Statements 

are same as compared with the annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 

2020, except for adoption of new standard or any pronouncements effective from 1 April 

2020. 

 

(1) Statement of compliance 

 

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian 

Accounting Standards (Ind AS), notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting 

Standards) Rules, 2015, and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the 

Act") as amended. The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Company’s 
Board of Directors at their meeting held on 14th August 2021. 

 

(2) Functional and presentation currency 

  

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), and all the values are 

rounded to the nearest Lacs with two decimals, except when otherwise indicated.  

 

(3) Basis of measurement 

 

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for 

certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting 

period, as explained in the accounting policies below. 

 

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange 

for goods and services. 

 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability 

in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless 

of  
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whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. 

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the 

characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those 

characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. 

Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is 

determined on such a basis except for, leasing transactions that are within the scope of 

Ind AS 116, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair 

value, such as net realizable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 36. 

   

(4) Use of estimates and critical accounting judgments 

 

In preparation of the financial statements, the Company makes judgments, estimates and 

assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily 

apparent from other sources. The estimates and the associated assumptions are based on 

historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results 

may differ from these estimates. 

 

The estimates and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. 

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is 

revised and future periods affected. 

 

(5) Current / Non-current classification 

 

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non- 

current classification. 

 

An asset is treated as current when it is:  

▪ Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating 

cycle, 

▪ Held primarily for the purpose of trading, expected to be realized within twelve 

months after the reporting period, or  

▪ Cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a 

liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. 

▪ All other assets are classified as non-current. 

      

      A liability is current when:  

 

▪ It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,  

▪ It is held primarily for the purpose of trading,  

▪ It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or  

▪ There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at 

least twelve months after the reporting period. 

▪ The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.  

 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities and advance against current tax are classified as 

non-current assets and liabilities.  

 

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and 

their  realization in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve 

months as its operating cycle. 
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(5) (a) Non- current assets held for sale 

 

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be 

recovered through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This 

condition is regarded as met only when the asset is available for immediate sale in its 

present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sale of such 

asset and its sale is highly probable. Management must be committed to the sale, 

which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one 

year from the date of classification. 

 

(6) Investments 

 

Investments-properties 

 

Since there is no change in the functional currency, the Company has elected to 

continue with the policy of carrying value for all of its investment property if any as 

recognized in its Indian GAAP financial statements as deemed cost at the transition 

date, viz., April 1, 2016.  

 

Investment in properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. 

Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost. 

           

Equity investment at FVTOCI 

 

The Company has designated investment in equity shares of Pam Jewellers Private 

Limited as at FVTOCI on the basis of fact and circumstances that existed at the 

transition date. 

 

(7) Property, plant and equipment  

 

Land and buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or 

for administrative purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated 

depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Freehold land is not depreciated. 

 

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative 

purposes are carried at cost, less any recognized impairment loss. Cost includes 

professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalized in accordance 

with the accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories 

of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended use. 

Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences 

when the assets are ready for their intended use. 

 

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and 

accumulated impairment losses. 

 

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no 

future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. 

Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and 

equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying 

amount of the asset and is recognized in profit or loss. 
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(8) Cash Flow Statement 

 

Cash flows are reported using indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for 

the effects transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or 

future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular revenue generating, 

financing and investing activities of the Group are segregated. Cash and cash equivalents 

in the cash flow comprise cash at bank, cash/ cheques in hand and short-term 

investments with an original maturity of three months or less 

 

(9) Depreciation and amortization of property, plant and equipment and intangible 

assets 

 

Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land 

and properties under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives, using 

the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation 

method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes 

in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. 

The estimated useful lives for the main categories of property, plant and equipment and 

other intangible assets are: 

(i) Building  -    60 years. 

(ii) Plant and Machinery -   10 years 

(iii) Furniture and fixtures -  10 years 

(iv) Office equipment’s -              5 years 

(v) Vehicles -     8 years 

(vi) Computer (including software) –  3 years 

 

(10) Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill 

 

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its 

property, plant and equipment and intangible assets to determine whether there is any 

indication that the carrying amount of those assets may not be recoverable through 

continuing use. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is 

reviewed in order to determine the extent of impairment loss (if any). Where the asset 

does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Company 

estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs. 

Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life are tested for impairment annually and 

whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.  

 

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In 

assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present 

value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time 

value of  

money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows 

have not been adjusted. An impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and 

Loss as and when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. 

 

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or 

cash generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but 

so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would 

have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash 

generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income 

immediately. 
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(11) Leases 

 

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the 

substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is (or 

contains) a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific 

asset or assets, and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that 

right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement. 

 

Where the Company is a lessee 

i) Operating lease 

 

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss 

on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease unless another systematic basis 

is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased 

asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as 

an expense in the reporting period in which they are incurred. 

 

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such 

incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised 

as a reduction of rental expense on a straight line basis, except where another systematic 

basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the 

leased asset are consumed. 

 

ii) Finance lease 

 

Finance leases are capitalized at the commencement of lease, at the lower of the fair 

value of the property or the present value of the minimum lease payments. The 

corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease 

obligation. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of 

the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance 

of the liability. Finance charges are charged directly against income over the period of 

the lease. 

 

Where the Company is a lessor 

 

(i) Operating lease 

 

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on 

a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease unless another systematic basis is 

more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset 

is 

 diminished. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease 

are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight line 

basis over the lease term. 

 

(ii) Finance lease 

 

When assets are leased out under a finance lease, the present value of the minimum lease 

payments is recognised as a receivable. The difference between the gross receivable and 

the present value of the receivable is recognised as unearned finance income. Lease 

income is recognised over the term of the lease using the net investment method before 

tax, which reflects a constant periodic rate of return. 
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(12) Financial instruments 

 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a 

party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are 

initially measured at fair value. The transaction costs that are directly attributable to the 

acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets 

and financial liabilities at fair value through Profit or Loss) are added to or deducted 

from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability. 

The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and 

financial liabilities at fair value through Profit and Loss are immediately recognised in 

the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

 

Effective interest method 

 

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial 

instrument and of allocating interest income or expense over the relevant period. The 

effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts future cash receipts or payments 

through the expected life of the financial instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter 

period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition. 

 

a) Financial assets 

 

Financial assets at amortised cost 

 

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are 

held within a business model whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect 

contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on 

specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the 

principal amount outstanding. 

 

Financial assets measured at fair value 

 

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these 

financial assets are held within a business model whose objective is to hold these assets 

in order to collect contractual cash flows or to sell these financial assets and the 

contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 

solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

 

Financial asset not measured at amortized cost or at fair value through other 

comprehensive income is carried at fair value through Profit or Loss.  

 

Impairment of financial assets 

 

Loss allowance for expected credit losses is recognised for financial assets measured at 

amortised cost and fair value through other comprehensive income. 

 

Loss allowance equal to the lifetime expected credit losses is recognised if the credit risk 

on the financial instruments has significantly increased since initial recognition. For 

financial instruments whose credit risk has not significantly increased since initial 

recognition, loss allowance equal to twelve months expected credit losses is recognised. 

       Derecognition of financial assets 

 

The Company derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash 
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flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all risks 

and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Company neither transfers 

nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control 

the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the assets and an 

associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially 

all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company 

continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing 

of the proceeds received. 

 

b) Financial liabilities and equity instruments 

 

Equity instruments 

 

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the 

Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments are recorded at the 

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. 

 

Financial Liabilities 

 

Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and 

are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method. 

 

Interest-bearing bank loans, overdrafts and issued debt are initially measured at fair 

value and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate 

method. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the 

settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the borrowings in 

accordance with the Company’s accounting policy for borrowing costs. 
 

Derecognition of financial liabilities 

 

The Company derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s 
obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire. 

 

(13) Employee benefits 

 

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to 

be settled wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the 

employees render the related service are recognized in respect of employee service up to 

the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amount expected to be paid when 

the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit 

obligations in the balance sheet. 

 

(14) Taxation 

 

Tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax 

 

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the reporting period. Taxable 

profit differs from net profit as reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss because it 

excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it 

further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company’s liability for 
current tax is calculated using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted. 

 

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the 

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the 

corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for 
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using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised 

for all taxable temporary differences. In contrast, deferred tax assets are only recognised 

to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which 

the temporary differences can be utilised.  

 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting 

period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable 

profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. 

 

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when 

the liability is settled or the asset is realised based on the tax rates and tax laws that have 

been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period. The 

measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that 

would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting 

period, to cover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.  

 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset to the extent that they relate to taxes levied 

by the same tax authority and they are in the same taxable entity.  

 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable timing differences. 

 

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that there is a reasonable certainty 

that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax 

assets can be realised. 

 

Current and deferred tax are recognised as an expense or income in the Statement of 

Profit and Loss, except when they relate to items credited or debited either in other 

comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the tax is also recognised in 

other comprehensive income or directly in equity. 

 

(15) Inventories 

 

Inventories cost is ascertained on the “Weighted Average Cost” basis. 
 

Raw materials Inventory cost comprise direct materials and, where applicable, direct 

labour costs and those overheads that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to 

their present location and condition.  

 

Work in progress Inventory cost includes conversion and other costs incurred to bring 

asset to the present condition. 

 

Finished and semi-finished goods Inventory cost includes direct materials, direct labour, 

and direct overhead costs to bring inventory to the present condition (finished / semi-

finished). 

    

Raw materials, Finished and Semi finished goods inventory cost (computed on the 

above-stated basis) as at the year-end is compared with net realizable value of inventory. 

Inventory is valued at lower of cost or net realizable value.  

 

Net realizable value is the price at which the inventories can be realized in the normal 

course of business after allowing for the cost of conversion from their existing state to a 

finished condition and for the cost of marketing, selling and distribution.  

 

Provisions are made to cover slow moving and obsolete items based on historical 

experience of utilization on each product category and considering market conditions 



93 

 

 

(16) Cash and cash equivalents 

 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and 

other short term deposits. 

 

(17) Provisions 

 

Provisions are recognized in the balance sheet when the Company has a present 

obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, which is expected to result in 

an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits which can be reliably estimated. 

Each provision is based on the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the 

present obligation at the balance sheet date. When appropriate, provisions are measured 

on a discounted basis.  

 

Constructive obligation is an obligation that derives from an entity’s actions where: 

 

(a) by an established pattern of past practice, published policies or a sufficiently 

specific current statement, the entity has indicated to other parties that it will accept 

certain responsibilities; and 

 

(b) as a result, the entity has created a valid expectation on the part of those other 

parties that it will discharge those responsibilities.  

 

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to 

be recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually 

certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be 

measured reliably. 

Contingent liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in the notes. Contingent assets 

are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial assets. 

 

(18) Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations 

 

Non-current assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and 

fair value less costs to sell. Assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount 

will be recovered through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This 

condition is only met when the sale is highly probable and the asset is available for 

immediate sale in its present condition and is marketed for sale at a price that is 

reasonable in relation to its current fair value.  

 

(19) Contingent liabilities 

 

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose 

existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more 

uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is 

not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to 

settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there 

is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The 

Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the 

financial statements. 

 

(20) Revenue 

 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking 

into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties 
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collected on behalf of the government. Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is 

probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be 

reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Amounts disclosed 

are net of returns, trade discounts, rebates, value added taxes.  

 

Sale of Goods Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized upon passage of title to the 

customers which coincides with their delivery and is measured at fair value of 

consideration received/receivable, net of returns and allowances, discounts, volume 

rebates and cash discounts. The Company collects Goods and Services tax (GST) on 

behalf of the government and, therefore, these are not economic benefits flowing to the 

Company. Hence, these are excluded from revenue. 

 

Interest income 

 

Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the 

economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured 

reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal 

outstanding and the effective interest rate applicable  

 

(21) Borrowing Costs 

 

Borrowings costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of 

qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get 

ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time 

as the assets are substantially ready for the intended use or sale.  

 

All borrowing costs are recognized in the Statement of profit and loss in the period in 

which they are incurred. 

 

(22) Fair Value Measurement 

 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability 

in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 

 

The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the 

asset or transfer the liability takes place either -   

 -In the principal market for the asset or liability, or        

 -In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or 

liability        

         

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial 

statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy 

classifies the inputs used to measure fair value into three levels, which are as follows: 

 

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

that the entity can access at the measurement date. 

 

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for 

the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. 

 

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 

 

For financial assets and liabilities maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date 

and which are not carried at fair value, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due 

to the short maturity of these instruments.  
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(23) Earnings per share  

 

Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing profit or loss attributable to equity 
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g. Ind AS 105 Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations –The 

amendment substitutes the definition of ―’fair value less costs to sell’ with ’fair value 
less costs of disposal’ shall be substituted  

h. Ind AS 106 Exploration for and evaluation of mineral resources – The amendment has 

been made in reference to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under 

Indian Accounting Standards in respect of expenditures that shall not be recognized as 

exploration and evaluation assets.  

i. Ind AS 107 Financial Instruments: Recognition, Presentation and Disclosure – The 

amendment clarifies the certain additional disclosures to be made on account of 

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform like (i) the nature and extent of risks to which the 

entity is exposed arising from financial instruments subject to interest rate benchmark 

reform, (ii) the entity‘s progress in completing the transition to alternative benchmark 
rates, and how the entity is managing the transition. 

j. Ind AS 111 Joint Arrangements – In order to maintain consistency with the 

amendments made in Ind AS 103, respective changes have been made in Ind AS 111. 

k. Ind AS 114 Regulatory Deferral Accounts – The amendment clarifies that an entity 

may only change its accounting policies for the recognition, measurement, and 

impairment and derecognition of regulatory deferral account balances if the change 

makes the financial statements more relevant to the economic decision-making needs 

of users and no less reliable.  

l. Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers – Certain amendments have 

been made in order to maintain consistency with number of paragraphs of IFRS 15.  

m. Ind AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors – In order 

to maintain consistency with the amendments made in Ind AS 114 and to substitute 

the word ‘Framework’ with the ‘Conceptual Framework of Financial Reporting in Ind 
AS’, respective changes have been made in the standard.  

n. Ind AS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment –The amendment has been made by 

substituting the words ’Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less 
costs to sell and its value in use’ with ‘Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s 
fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use’.  

o. Ind AS 34 Interim Financial Reporting –The amendments to this standard are made in 

reference to the conceptual Framework of Financial Reporting in Ind AS. 

p. Ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets–The amendment 

substitutes the definition of term ‘Liability’ as provided in the Conceptual Framework 
for Financial Reporting under Indian Accounting Standards. 

q. Ind AS 38 Intangible Assets - The amendment substitutes the definition of term 

‘Asset’ as provided in the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under 

Indian Accounting Standards. 

Application of above standards are not expected to have any significant impact on the 

Group’s consolidated financial statements. However, the Company has adopted the 
changes to Ind AS 116 as above for the year ended 31st March 2021 as notified. 
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MIDAS INFRA TRADE LIMITED  

CIN:-L65910DL1994PLC062379  

 301, 2633-34 BANK STREET KAROL BAGH, NEW DELHI-110005  

 Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2021 

 A    Equity share capital                

 Particulars        

   No of Share    
 Amount (INR 

in Lacs)  

  - As at March 31, 2020          1,220        1,220.00  

  - As at March 31, 2021              1,220        1,220.00  

                    

 B    Other Equity                 

                    

 Particulars   Reserve and Surplus Amount (Amount INR in Lacs)  

 Securities 

Premium  

 Capital 

Reserve  

 Retained Earnings   Total Equity  

 Balance as at April 1, 2020     179.23  295.45 474.68 

 Profit  for the year     -     (147.88)                     (147.88) 

   Other comprehensive income/(loss) for 

the year  

   -                                    -     -    

   Total comperhensive 

income/(loss)   

      (147.88)                     (147.88) 

 Income tax refund         -    

 Balance as at March 31, 2021  -     179.23   147.57                326.80 

                  

 Balance as at April 1, 2019    179.23  259.31 438.54 

 Profit  for the year      36.14 36.14 

   Other comprehensive income/(loss) for 

the year  

       -    

   Total comperhensive income/(loss)   

  

  
 

36.14 36.14 

 Income tax refund     -    -           - 

 Balance as at March 31, 2020   -     179.23   295.45                474.68 
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Note 2- Property Plant And Equipment                                                             

 

Particulars 
Gross Block Accumulated 

Depreciation 

Net Block 

As at 

April 1, 

2020 

Additions/ 

adjustmen

ts 

Deductio

ns/ 

adjust

ments 

As at Mar 

31, 2021 

As at 

April 1, 

2020 

Charge 

for the 

year 

Deductio

ns/ 

adjustme

nts 

As at Mar 

31, 2021 

As at Mar 

31, 2021 

As at 

March 31, 

2020 

Tangible 
Assets           

Building* 93620,404 - - 93,620,404 2,377,268 4,443,807 - 6,821,075 86,799,329 91,243,136 

Computer, 

Printer & 

Software 

1,412,974 499,576 - 1,912,550 1,255,373 344,079 - 1,599,451 313,099 157,601 

Vehicles 3,823,284 - - 3,823,284 1,889,208 604,097 - 2,493,305 1,329,979 1,934,076 

Furniture 

and fixtures 
19,810,795  - 19,810,795 9,103,186 2,771,831 - 11,875,017 7,935,778 10,707,609 

Office 

Equipment 
1,821,830 - - 1,821,830 1,160,898 297,893 - 1,458,791 363,039 660,932 

Plant and 

machinery 
1,217,505  - 1,217,505 613,030 167,463 - 780,493 437,012 604,475 

TOTAL 121,706,792 499,576 - 122,206,368 16,398,963 8,629,170 - 25,028,132 97,178,237 105,307,829 

(Previous 

year) 
26,913,578 94,793,214 - 121,706,792 8,526,333 7,520,676 351,954 16,398,963 105,307,829 18,387,245 

Intangible 

Assets 
- - - - - - - - - - 

TOTAL - - - - - - - - - - 

(Previous 

year) 
3,773,485 - (3,773,485) - 351,954 - (351,954) - - 3,421,531 

 

3. Investments   31 Mar 2021 31 Mar 2020 

  (Unquoted measured at cost unless otherwise 

stated)   

    

  -Investment in Equity Instruments (Fully paid up)       

  (Pam Jewellers Private Limited (20000 Shares of Rs. 

10/- each at a premium of Rs. 990/- each)  
2,00,00,000 2,00,00,000 

  Aggregate value of unquoted non-current 

investments  
2,00,00,000 2,00,00,000 

    

4. Non Current Assets    

  (Unsecured and considered good)      

  To parties other than related parties      

  -Security deposits  12,15,000 3,86,15,000 

  -Loans and advances*  6,03,50,476 6,53,61,944 

   6,15,65,476 10,39,76,944 

    

5 Inventories    

  (Valued at lower of cost or net realizable value)      

  Raw materials  11,08,72,420 8,40,19,982 

  Finished goods  20,37,259 41,66,93,352 

   11,29,09,679 50,07,13,334 
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6. Trade Receivables    

  Unsecured, considered good*  3,60,72,084 5,49,08,614 

  3,60,72,084 5,49,08,614 

    

7. Cash and cash equivalents     

  Cash In Hand  1,11,570 1,34,58,258 

  Balances With Bank    

  -on current account  77,742 7,03,595 

   1,89,312 1,41,61,853 

    

8. Current Tax Assets    

  Advance Income Tax / TDS/ TCS  3,51,896 2,83,737 

  MAT Credit Entitlement  38,10,009 38,10,009 

   41,61,905 40,93,746 

    

9. Other Current Assets     

  To parties other than related parties    

  Unsecured, considered good    

 Balance with Govt Authorities (other than incometax)  2,49,407 91,06,276 

  Prepayments  77,446 3,07,562 

  3,26,853 94,13,838 

 

10. Equity Share capital  
    

   As at Mar 31, 2021   As at March 31, 2020   
 Number of 

shares  

 (Amount in 

INR)  

 Number of 

shares  

 (Amount in 

INR)  

 Authorised share capital (Equity Shares of Re. 1 each)  

 

As at the beginning of the year  

 

12,50,00,000.00 

 

2,50,00,000.00 12,50,00,000 12,50,00,000 

 As at the end of the year  12,50,00,000.00 12,50,00,000.00 12,50,00,000 12,50,00,000    
  

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up share capital (Equity Shares of Re. 1 each) 

As at the beginning of the year  12,20,00,000.00 12,20,00,000.00 12,20,00,000 12,20,00,000 

 As at the end of the year  12,20,00,000.00 12,20,00,000.00 12,20,00,000 12,20,00,000 

 

11.  Non-current Borrowings   

  Secured       

  -Car Loans From Bank*  3,87,429 3,03,996 

  Unsecured     

  -From others**  13,67,30,000 15,57,30,000 

   13,71,17,429 15,60,33,996 

    

12  Trade Payables     
 For Goods and Services    

 

 
 - Total outstanding dues of Micro and Small 

Enterprises*  - 

- 

 
 - Total outstanding dues other than Micro and Small 

Enterprises  

97,37,391 42,75,99,098 

 
  97,37,391 42,75,99,098  

  
  

13  Other Current Financial Liabilities   
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 Current maturities of Long term borrowings  3,76,133 5,86,638  

  3,76,133 5,86,638  
  

  

14 Other Current liabilities    
 Expense Payable  10,26,500 25,83,412  
 Statutory Dues Payable  68,08,136 68,56,954  
 Advance received from customers  1,16,18,021 3,88,42,417  

  1,94,52,657 4,82,82,783  
  

  

15  Provisions      
 Provison for income tax  90,00,000 90,00,000  

  90,00,000 90,00,000 

    

16. Revenue from operations     

 Sale of products (Gross)   

 (a) Manufactured Goods- Jewellery - 1,18,81,41,871 

  Less:- Return  - (1,32,05,623) 

    1,17,49,36,248 

 (b) Traded goods 71,59,32,539 1,83,786 

   71,59,32,539 1,17,51,20,034 

     

17  Other income   

  Interest Income  9,562 14,37,043 

  Miscellaneous Recepts  10,219 - 

  Miscellaneous Balances W/o.  1,76,43,963 - 

   1,76,63,744 14,37,043 

     

18  Cost of Raw Material Consumed     

  Opening Stock of Raw Materials  8,40,19,982 12,75,07,178 

  Purchases  of Raw Materials  18,75,73,955 13,99,33,449 

  Less : Closing Stock of Raw Materials  11,08,72,420 8,40,19,982 

                                                                               (A)  16,07,21,517 18,34,20,645 

  DIRECT/ PRODUCTIONS EXPENSES    

  Job Work  10,46,000 1,01,87,749 

  Certifiction charges  - 23,981 

                                                                                (B)  10,46,000 1,05,44,312 

                                                                       (A  +  B)  16,17,67,517 19,39,64,957 

 

19  Purchases of Traded Goods   

  Purchases of Traded Goods  13,70,65,683 98,37,37,662 

  Less:- Return   - 

   13,70,65,683 98,37,37,662 

     

20 Changes in inventories of finished goods and 

work-in-progress   

  

  Jewellery    

  Opening inventories Finished goods Work in 

progress By products 

  

41,46,56,093 31,34,23,936 

  Closing inventories Finished goods Work in 

progress By products  

- 41,46,56,093 

                                                                                                  

(A)  

41,46,56,093 (10,12,32,157) 
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  Garments     

 Opening inventories Garments  20,37,259 21,90,414 

 Closing inventories Garments  20,37,259 20,37,259 

  (B)  - 1,53,155 

                                                                                         

(A  +  B)  

41,46,56,093 (10,10,79,002) 

     

21  Employee benefits expense     

  Staff Salaries  39,46,432 2,48,01,230 

  Directors Remuneration  - 21,60,000 

  Contribution to provident and other funds    

 (b) Employee State Insurance Scheme - 74,038 

 (a) Provident fund - 4,58,053 

 (a) Admin Charges on PF - 32,842 

  Staff Welfare Expenses  2,58,341 6,33,512 

  42,04,773 2,81,59,674 

    

22  Finance cost       

  Interest On Car loan  72,557 1,03,281 

   72,557 1,03,281 

     

23  Other expenses     

  Advertisement Expenses  2,95,161 39,88,430 

  Alarm monitoring expenses   - 5,997 

  Alterartion work Expenses  - 19,165 

  Annual Listing fees  3,00,000 3,00,000 

  Audit Fees  4,25,000 4,25,000 

  Bad Debts  - 1,08,50,341 

  Bank Charges  8,56,443 12,95,851 

  Commission on Credit Card  - 5,97,471 

  CDSL Fees  64,900 64,664 

  Commission on online booking  - 1,61,013 

  Compensatory Allowance  - 1,28,100 

  Computer Expenses  - 12,322 

  Consultancy charges  2,26,016 16,50,250 

  Conveyance Expenses  - 1,66,695 

  Courier Expenses  - 31,661 

  Discount   1,35,144 27,85,456 

  EDC Charges  9,440 68,801 

  Electricity & Water Expenses  12,20,056 40,58,505 

  Exhibition Expenses  - 8,09,051 

  Fee and Subscription  2,53,333 7,080 

  Franchisee Fees  1,50,000 13,50,000 

  Hosting Expenses  - 6,59,223 

  Insurance  4,60,841 6,44,056 

  Interest & Penalty On GST, TDS & Others  8,640 4,62,461 

  Late fee Charges  40,756 - 

  Legal & Professional Charges  1,98,186 19,04,362 

  Office Expenses  92,657 2,01,342 

  Premise Rent  54,69,321 1,84,45,116 

  Printing & Stationery  35,558 5,44,912 

  Prior Period Expenses  - 47,200 

  Repair & Maintenance  29,54,639 23,35,371 
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  ROC Fee  600 29,772 

  Sales Promotion   2,43,418 7,85,805 

  Security Charges & House Keeping  2,000 6,34,600 

  Miscellaneous expenses/Short & Excess  4,00,663 80,772 

  Software Expenses  1,13,500 1,45,474 

  Short & Excess  (20) - 

  Telephone Expenses  94,951 5,63,715 

  Tour & travelling Expenses  22,882 40,368 

  Uniform Expenses  - 80,720 

  Vehical Running amd Maintenance  61,597 5,92,040 

  Website Maintenance Expenses  - 48,500 

  Welfare Expenses  42,395 - 

  Paid under settlement agreement  70,00,000 20,00,000 

   2,11,78,076 5,90,21,661 
 

24. Financial risk 

management 

   

    

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising 

from financial instruments: 

  

▪ Credit risk  
   

▪ Liquidity risk and 
   

▪ Market risk 
   

Risk management 

framework 

   

The Company's Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the 

Company risk management framework. The risk management policies are established to identify and 

analyse the risk faced by the Company to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and 

adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in 

market conditions and company activities. The Company's board oversees how management monitors 

compliance with Company's risk management policies and procedures, and review adequacy of the risk 

management framework in relation to the risk faced by the Company. 

This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk 

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement  Management  

Credit Risk 

Cash and Cash 

Equivalents, trade 

receivables, financial 

assets  

Aging analysis   Diversification of bank 

deposits, credit limits  

Liquidity Risk 
All financial liabilities Rolling cash 

flow forecasts 

 Availability of 

borrowing facilities  

Market Risk - Price 

Fluctuation in price of 

gold. 

Cash flow 

forecast 

Sensitivity 

Analysis 

  

i. Credit risk 
   

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial 

instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk 
associated with the trade and other receivables.  

Trade and other receivables 
   

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each 
customer. However, management also considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its 

customer base, including the default risk of the industry and country in which customers operate. 
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In determining the recoverability of trade receivables, the Company considers any change in the credit 

quality of trade receivables from the date, credit was initially granted upto the reporting date. The 

concentratrion of credit risk is limited due to the customer base being large and unrelated. Accordingly 

the management believes that there is no further credit provision required in excess of the allowance for 

doubtful debts. Management has assessed the advances and other receivables for impairment and has 

concluded that appropriate provision has been made for the doubtful advances and balance are fully 

recoverable in the normal course of business. 

ii. Liquidity risk 
   

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated 

with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s 
approach to manage liquidity is to ensure, availability of funding through an adequate amount of credit 

facilities to meet obigations when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring 

unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.  
Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity position i.e. cash and cash equivalents 

on the basis of expected cash flows. 

iii. Market risk 
   

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices of 

gold.  

  

    

25.  Capital management 
   

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share 
premium and all other reserves attributable to the equity holders. The primary objective of the 

Company’s capital management is to maximize the shareholder value. Management monitors the return 
on capital as well as the level of dividends to ordinary shareholders. 

Management of the Company has ensured that net worth of the Company has increased and profit from 

operations of 

 the company has been utilised further in the operations of the Company. 

    31 Mar 2021 31 Mar 2020 

Total Assets 
 

33,24,03,546 81,25,76,159 

Total Liabilities 
 

17,77,22,953 64,31,07,546 

Net Worth 
 

15,46,80,593 16,94,68,613 

The Company determines the amount of capital required on the basis of actual business plans coupled 

with long-term and short-term strategic investment and expansion plans. The funding needs are met 

through equity, cash generated from operations, long-term and short-term borrowings. To maintain or 

adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to 

shareholders or issue new shares.No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for 

managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2021. 

The Company monitors capital on the basis of total debt to total equity on a periodic basis. The following 

table summarizes the capital of the Company:  

    31 Mar 2021 31 Mar 2020 

Long Term Borrowings 
 

13,67,41,296 15,60,33,996 

Short Term Borrowings 
 

- - 

Total Debt 
 

13,67,41,296 15,60,33,996 

Equity Share Capital 
 

12,20,00,000 12,20,00,000 

Other Equity 
 

3,26,80,593 4,74,68,613 

Total Equity 
 

15,46,80,593 16,94,68,613 

Debt-Equity Ratio 
 

0.88 0.92 

Dividends 
   

Dividends not recognized at 

the end of the reporting period 

  
- - 

 

26. a) Contingent Liabilities  
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(i) The Company is yet to deposit the Government dues as mentioned in statutory dues payable under 

other current liabilities. The penalty and other proceedings regarding the said default cannot be 

quantified at this juncture.  

(ii) During the financial year 2017-18, there was a debt payable to Hariprasad Gopikrishna Jewellers 

Private Limited of Rs. 32313669/- on account of purchase of jewellery by HDC Private Limited, the 

company which was taken over by Midas Infra Trade Limited. During the year 2018-19, the company 

had made a sale to Hariprasad Gopikrishna Jewellers Private Limited of Rs. 43164010/- vide invoice no. 

CO/34 dated 30.12.2018. Thereby Hariprasad Gopikrishna Jewellers Private Limited became a debtor of 

Midas Infra Trade Limited to the tune of Rs. 10850341/- as on 31.03.2019. 

Hariprasad Gopikrishna Jewellers Private Limited filed a petition for the recovery of Rs. 32313669/- 

which was accepted by NCLT New Delhi on 20.11.2019. Subsequently, a settlement agreement dated 

28.11.2019 (Accepted by NCLT vide order dated 2.12.2019) was entered by Midas Infra Trade Limited 

with Hariprasad Gopikrishna Jewellers Private Limited for the payment of Rs. 2 Crores (Which was 

subsequently revised to Rs. 1.10 Crores vide Addendum to settlement agreement dated 03.06.2020 . The 

Company acknowledged a debt of Rs. 20 Lacs (paid during the year 2019-20) and further acknowledged 

a debt of Rs. 70 Lacs (Paid during the year) out of Rs. 1.10 Crores. The Company further settled this 

claim to Rs. 0.90 Crore (which has been paid as mentioned) vide claim settlement agreement dt. 

01.04.2021 whereby both companies agreed not to claim anything further between themselves in future. 

b) Contingent Asset: Since both the companies have settled not to claim anything further between 

themselves in future there will not be any contingent asset which was there in the previous year 

 

27. Obligations & Commitments outstanding 

As per the information made available to us and as certified by the management, there are no capital and 

other commitments outstanding as on 31st March 2021 (Previous Year: Nil) 

a) The debit & credit balances of bankers and parties are subject to confirmation. The response to letters 

sent by the Company requesting confirmation of balances has been insignificant. In management's 

opinion, adjustment on reconciliation of the balances, if any required, will not be material in relation to 

the financial statements of the company and the same will be adjusted in the financial statements as and 

when the confirmations are received and reconciliations are complete. 

b) Inventories, loans & advances, trade receivables and other current / non-current assets are reviewed 

annually and in management's opinion, they do not have a value on realization in the ordinary course of 

business less than the amounts at which they are stated in the balance sheet.    

 

28. Payments to Auditors 31 Mar 2021 31 Mar 2020 

As Auditor - for statutory audit and limited review 4,25,000 4,25,000  
4,25,000 4,25,000 

   

29. The Government of India promulgated an Act namely The Micro and Small Enterprises 

Development Act, 2006 which came into force with effect from October 2, 2006. The Company has 

during the year, not received any intimation from any of its suppliers regarding their status under the said 

Act and hence disclosures, if any, relating to amounts unpaid as at the year end along with interest paid / 

payable as required under the said Act have not been given. 

30. Statutory dues payable include dues for PF, ESIC and TDS which are yet to be paid. The dues 

pertaining to the entire financial year 2019-20. The dues for the year 2020-21 are yet to be provided 

in the books. The returns pertaining to the said dues are also yet to be filed 

31. The Company is yet to file the Income Tax Return for the Assessment Year 2019-2020 & 2020-21 

and hence the provision for tax for the said period is yet to be finalised. The interest and penalties 

pertaining to the said delay cannot be quantified at this juncture. 

32. The management expects a slowdown in financial year 2021-22 from the imminent stress on Indian 

economy and the world economies as well due to COVID-19 containment measures. 

34.  Earnings per share (EPS) 
  

Particulars 
  

Net profit/(loss) after tax for the year  (1,47,88,020) 36,14,381 
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Weighted number of ordinary shares for basic EPS  12,20,00,000 12,20,00,000 

Nominal value of ordinary share (in Rs. per share) 1 1 

Basic and Diluted earnings for ordinary shares (in Rs. 

per share) 

(0.12) 0.03 

 

35. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 

A. Names of related parties and description 

of relation: 

(i)   Holding companies: NIL 

   

(ii) Related parties other than holding companies with whom 

transactions have taken place during the year (a) Fellow 

subsidiaries :NIL 

(b) Other related parties : 

  

M/s Hindustan Gold Gems House Private 

Limited 

Same Directors 
  

M/s Venus Gems And Jewels Private 

Limited 

Madhvi Gupta 

Common Director 

  

B    Transactions with related parties 

For the year ended March 31, 2021 

 

  

  
31 Mar 

2021 

31 Mar 2020 

M/s Hindustan Gold Gems House Pvt Ltd 
 

  

Rent (Pitam Pura Showroom closed during the 

year 2019-20) 

 

- 8,93,016 

Purchases 
 

8,77,468 - 

Security Depsosit on our behalf (for Pitam Pura 

Showroom since closed) 

 

- 9,00,000 

Balance as on 31.03.2021 Nil (P/y Debit 

balance shown under Loans and advances) 

 

- 8,77,468 

M/s Venus Gems And Jewels Private 

Limited 

 

  

Commission on credit card expenses booked 
 

- 3,492 

Balance (Credit) shown under Sundry Creditors 

Others 

  
41,75,059 57,65,124 

    

 In terms of our report attached of even date   FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS   

 FOR AND ON BEHALF OF  
   

 For A P R A & ASSOCIATES LLP   

 

 (Chartered Accountants)   

 

 Firm Registration No 011078N/N500064   

 

 RAJNISH CHOPRA  BHAGAT RAM 
 (Managing Director)  (Director) 
 (DIN 07676838)  (DIN 08198815)  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

ASHOK GUPTA MURARI LAL  PRAVEEN KUMAR 

DESIGNATED PARTNER  (Chief Financial Officer)  Company Secretary 

MEMBERSHIP NO. - 085683 (Pan: ACKPL0892K)  
(M. No. A32631) 
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Form No. AOC-2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3)of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the 

Companies  

(Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the 

company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transactions under third proviso 

thereto: 

1.Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:  
Midas Infra Trade Limited (the Company) has not entered into any 

contract/arrangement/transaction with its related parties which is not in ordinary course of 

business or at arm’s length during FY 2020-21. The Company has laid down policies and 

processes/procedures so as to ensure compliance to the subject section in the Companies 

Act, 2013 (Act) and the corresponding Rules. 

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of 

relationship 

NIL 

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions NIL 

(c) Duration of the contracts / 

arrangements/transactions 

NIL 

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or 

transactions including the value, if any 

NIL 

(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or 

arrangements or transactions 

NIL 

(f) date(s) of approval by the Board NIL 

(g) Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL 

(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in 

general meeting as required under first proviso to 

section 188 

NIL 

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis 

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of 

relationship 

NIL 

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions NIL 

(c) Duration of the contracts / 

arrangements/transactions 

NIL 

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or 

transactions including the value, if any: 

NIL 

(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: NIL 

(f) Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL 
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